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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

S 5 4

2018/2019 2017/2018
2018/2019%F  2017/2018% Increase/(Decrease)
Amount #Em/ i)
£ 8 %
Operating results (HK$'000) E&¥%&(F# )
Revenue A 183,077 188,550 (4,573) (2.4)
Gross profit EF 127,384 131,175 (3,791) 2.9
Loss for the year FANEE (11,619) (7,221) (4,398) 60.9
Profitability (%) BB N (%)
Gross profit margin EFI= 69.2 69.6 (0.4) (0.6)
Net profit margin 7| & (6.3) (3.8) (2.5) (65.8)
Return on equity AR A [3] ¥R & (2.3) 0.7 (1.6) (228.6)
Return on total assets BEERRE (1.7) (0.7) (1.0 (142.9)
Liquidity nBES
Current ratio (time) B L & () 0.7 7.5 (6.8) (90.7)
Quick ratio (time) RE W E(F) 0.7 7.2 (6.5) (90.3)
Inventory turnover (days) FEBR®E(XE) 52.2 58.8 (6.6) (11.2)
Trade receivables turnover (days) 2 5 fE I 008 B & (X &) 39.1 37.2 1.9 5.1
Trade payables turnover (days) Z BN HXEBE (X&) 49.0 60.7 (11.7) (19.3)
Per share data ShEE
Earnings per share 1R 2
_ Basic (HK cents) - AR () 0.43 0.05 0.38 760.0
_ Diluted (HK cents) - E () 0.43 0.0 0.38 760.0
Dividend per share RS
— Interim (HK cents) - B (AL 1.00 1.00 - -
- Final (HK cents) - RE(EL) - 1.00 (1.00) (100)
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In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following terms and expressions shall have the meanings set out

below.

“Audit Committee”

“Board”

“Brand Development and

Management Segment”

“BVI”

“Company”

“Controlling
Shareholder(s)”

“Director(s)”

“Fullshare”

“Fullshare Group”

DEFINITIONS
B

RAEAFERP - BRXESZSEMEN T
AERABAEATHRE-
the audit committee of the Company [2 1% ¥ ARAIBRELEE
ZEg]
the board of Directors [EEg B EBEE®g
the business segment in which [RIEFEZE & AKXEEBFXrZgne
the Group purchases primarily K& A ANEEEAE
personal care products from the 58] BEEMRULREER
brand proprietors and manages and MEZEEMZm
develops the brand of such products R ERDE
the British Virgin Islands [RBEX & REBEREXHES
=S

Hin Sang Group (International) [Z& 2 &) 5 mz%m ) ¥
Holding Co. Limited, #7 &£ & B (& BAERAR — [
$)¥E B B BR A &l, an exempted ﬁA201O$1OH28EI
company incorporated with limited RS ST MmK
liability in the Cayman Islands on 28 UZEHREBERA
October 2010 al
has the meaning ascribed thereto [ E] ¥ B FEmHAFE T
under the Listing Rules and, in the el %fz A N/NI]
context of the Company, means mE E DRl EE K
each of Mr. Pang, Mrs. Pang and A 7(7(&MEE
Genwealth
the directors of the Company [E =] B ARAEZS
Fullshare Holdings Limited, 2 &% £ f& [ 2 2% | B ZBRERBERAQ
A B A 7, a company mcorporated Al —HRHA= 8
in the Cayman Islands with limited SEFMEKZZBR
liability whose issued shares are listed NECEBEBETR
on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 7 R B RFT £ (R
607) 3 R 5% : 607)
Fullshare and its subsidiaries [EREE] & ZERRKEMEAQA

B\ U A AR (B ) A BR A %



DEFINITIONS
&

“Genwealth”

“GMP”

“Group”

“Healthcare Segment”

“Hin Feng Group”

“Hin Sang Holding”

Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited ({TE &S B Z K B R 2 7)),
a company incorporated with limited
liability on 5 October 2010 in the BVI,
the issued shares of which are owned
as to 90% by Mr. Pang and 10% by
Mrs. Pang, a controlling shareholder
of the Company under the Listing
Rules

“Good Manufacturing Practice” is
a quality assurance approach used
by drug manufacturing industry
worldwide to ensure that products
are consistently produced and
controlled according to appropriate
quality standards. Hong Kong, like
most other countries, has adopted
the GMP guidelines promulgated by
the World Health Organisation (WHO)

the Company and its subsidiaries

the business segment in which the
Group engages in providing Chinese
medical healthcare related services
which targets for mothers and
children in Hong Kong and the PRC

Hin Feng Group (International)
Holding Company Limited $7 £ % &
(BB 42 B% B BR 2 &), a joint venture
company established in Hong Kong
on 7 July 2016, owned as to 51% by
the Company and as to 49% by Five
Seasons VIl Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Fullshare)

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited ($7
4 &£ B % B BR 2 F]), a company
incorporated with limited liability
on 11 September 2006 in the BVI
and directly wholly-owned by the
Company
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“Hin Sang Hong (HK)”

uHK$u

“Hong Kong”

“Listing”

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Mr. Pang”

“Mrs. Pang”

“Nomination Committee”

“Period”

“PRC” or “China”

“Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme”

Hin Sang Hong Company Limited
(1 &£ 17 B B 2 7)), a company
incorporated with limited liability on 13
June 1996 in Hong Kong and wholly-
owned by Hin Sang Holding and an
indirect subsidiary of the Company

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the listing of Shares on the Main
Board

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the Macau Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (2 2 %7), an
executive Director and a Controlling
Shareholder

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (B8 B =), the
spouse of Mr. Pang, an executive
Director and a Controlling Shareholder

the nomination committee of the
Company

the year ended 31 March 2019

the People’s Republic of China which,
for the purposes of this annual report,
excludes Hong Kong, Macau and
Taiwan

the Pre-IPO share option scheme

adopted by the Company on 25
September 2014
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DEFINITIONS
&

“Product Development
Segment”

“Remuneration
Committee”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”

“Stock Exchange”
“Tai Wo Tong

Pharmaceutical”

“Trading of Goods
Segment”

the business segment in which the
Group develops own personal care
products, health supplements and
household products sold under its
own brands, including but not limited
to “Hin Sang (#7 &)”, “Shuang Long
(22 38)” and “King’s Antiseptic (5% &
F)

the remuneration committee of the
Company

The Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in
the share capital of the Company

holder(s) of the Shares

the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 25 September 2014

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical (Hong
Kong) Company Limited (KX #1 %
2 2 (F AB)B B & 7), a company
mcorporated with limited liability on 6
April 2009 in Hong Kong

the business segment in which
the Group engages in trading and
distributing skin care products,
personal care products and
household products purchased
from various authorised dealers and
independent traders or directly from
suppliers

[ %r BA
=

[38 77 &

HI & B

[ B A7

B 3R

[ B

it &l

[B 32 P |

[KFE
S48

-

3
pils
=

’

il
i

Ty
—

D
ok O

AEBHREABR
mELEZBRE
AEEER RE
mEREEMmZIE
BoEb &%EFmE
BRETRRIN
El-T88E] RI&
B E]

AREFMNEES

BB LD E5T1E
EE R EE G

ZNUNECTE: QN R =i
H E0.10% T 2 &
i i

BHzHEEA

K A A R20144F9
H25E1 %%qu,ﬁﬁﬂx
5T &

BB A
B A

XHHMA

AMERE(EL)
ER A2 —HER
2009F4A6H £ &
MK Z AR

FERKBEAZME
REKiHEm LB
BRAEEZEXRE A
HER

6 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2018/2019



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Non-executive Directors
Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Chairman)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit (Chairman)

Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (Chairman)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Kho Polien

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin
Ms. Kwan Lai Man
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2 v B R

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1213-1215, 12/F, Seapower Tower,
Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

Chak & Associates
Kwok Yih & Chan

AUDITOR
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE/REGISTERED OFFICE

Estera Trust (Cayman) Limited
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street,
P.0. Box 1350, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1108, Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hinsanggroup.com

STOCK CODE
Stock Exchange: 6893

ENQUIRES

Company:

Email: contact@hinsanggroup.com

Public Relations Consultant:
Strategic Financial Relations Limited
Email: HSH_enquiry@sprg.com.hk
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
2 vl R

As at 31 March 2019
201953 A31H

Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Company Limited
FTEEE (BEFR) ERERAR

Hin Sang Group Holding Limited
IR EERERAR

| 100%
100% " . Hin Feng Group (International)
HM Advertising Company Limited Hin Sang,ﬁ;‘,g, CompanylRiie Holding Company Limited
RSB FTE B R R RAR)
VitaNu (Canada) Health ooy Company Limited
L00% Chong Sang (HK) Company Limited 100% . P"O‘?,‘,{Cts Limited I AIRAT
BIE(EB)ERAT MERMELBRERGRAR
. L Hin Sang Children Chinese Medical &
- 100% YaD’“E N$'h n C°%Pa”y Limited 100% Health Service Company Limited
7 ErhEE 0> AT
Beautymate Hong Kong Limited 15 E R AR L BIRAF
‘Yaome Nihon Corporation Hin Feng Invesigie
100% E 100% (NanJing) Co., Ltd.*
AR AEHEIL fpun = =
100% Hong Kong Pharmaceutical & i FIEA(AEERAR
Research Institute Co., Limited
SESIBR e : "
BRI SAERAR Hin Sang Holding Grc?up Nanjing Hin Sang Shuangzha TCM
100% (Shenzhen) Company Limited* 70% Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.*
P R B R BIRAR W e e
LI RIS SRR BT HERAR
w3 Hin On International Company Limited
FIRERARAR Hin Tai Pharmaceutical Nanjing Hin Sang E-Park TCM
100% (Shenzhen) Company Limited* 70% Outpatient Department Co., Ltd.*
(RN ) BRRATR R TE R LR B2 E BR AR
100% Hin Hi Int tional C Limited
g e e AL A Hin Yat Commercial (Shenzhen) NanJing Hin Sang Animation
RES Gl SR 100% |—| Company Limited* 70% Production Company Limited*
T BORN BRAR BRFTEEEEEGRAR
100% Tai Wo Tong Pharmaceutical Hin Hong Medical Management Herbal Family (Nanjing)
(Hong ﬁoqjglcotﬂp?ﬂy L/‘Tlmd 100% (Shenzhen) Company Limited* 100% Catering Company Limited*
AE RIS ERAA REHEEECRY FERAR SRR BR)BRERAR
Tai Wo Tong Company Limited 100 Herbal ng?n ;l;dir:_g nr(]{tieugli'ngdong) oo ngbal Famil;; glodem Agriculture
KAMNEFRAF] o y Limi (Guangdong) Company Limited
ERAREERR( R )BIRAR BEARERRREERERAR
100% Hong Kong Medicine Manufacture Nanjing Hin Feng Health
Holdings Co., Ltd. 100% Management Company Limited*
EBNERIERBIRAR 68% MRt RREEERAR

Hin Fai International Holding
Company Limited
BRI IR BR AR
| 100%

100%
Hong Kong Pharmaceutical & T v
Research Institute Co., Ltd. anjing Hin Sang Child Medical

EBNEHRRAERAR

Management Company Limited*
MRITERERREEGRAR

Hin Fai Hong Company Limited

100% PRI HRAR

| 100%

Hin Fai Electronic Commerce:

(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
BB FEBORIVBRAR

Hin Sang Health and Medical
(Guangdong) Company Limited *
PIERRREEE( R VBIRAR

100%

Hin Sang Medical
100% (Guangdong) Company Limited*
FIEBEE ER VARAR

* The English name is for identification only
* BN EREMRER

Hin Sang Biomedical Technology
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
PIEE MBS R )ARAR

100%

Hin Sang Analysis & Testing
(Guangdong) Company Limited*
(&R VARAR

100%

BT

Hin On Commercial (Yunfu)
Company Limited*
PREE(EF )ERAR

100%

)N R R R A A 4 O B i R D %




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV

MOST IMPORTANTLY, THE GROUP IS
DEDICATED TO NURTURE CHILDREN
AND SINCERELY BELIEVES THAT
CHILDREN ARE THE MOST CHERISHED
MEMBER OF OUR SOCIETY, AND IT
IS OUR TOP PRIORITY TO CARE FOR
THEM.

REEZENR AREBIRBERE - I
HERRZERLEBRR/VENRE
hERMNEETHESBEZ MM -

\_

Mr. Pang Siu Hin
EOTRE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

FEFITHABE
Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of Directors of Hin Sang Group (International)
Holding Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries, | am pleased to present the
annual report of the Group for the Year.

ANNUAL REVIEW

Hong Kong’s retail environment continues to slump during the
year 2019, and the retail sales are still in low level according to the
Hong Kong Census and Statistics Department. The Group is facing
competitive environment in these few years. Though there were
numerous factors affecting the Group’s performance this year, we
were still able to maintain a substantial market share in the children
healthcare products sector.
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The Group has managed to seize new opportunities in the Healthcare
Segment focusing on mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as
well as diagnosis and treatment services projects in both HK and
the PRC. Our first Chinese Medical Clinic (the “Clinic”) in Shek Mun,
Shatin, Hong Kong was operated since June 2017. There are two
Clinics in the Nanjing City of the Jiangsu Province, the PRC, the first
one named Nanjing Hin Sang E-Park TCM Outpatient Department
Co., Ltd. (FRITERIEREFT BFIZ I HR A R]) was operated
since May 2018 and the second one named Nanjing Hin Sang
Shuangzha TCM Outpatient Department Co., Ltd. (F R 574 E [
FREEFI2 S A BR A 7) was operating since July 2018.

The Group has also constructing a production plant for manufacturing
health supplements in Yunfu City of the Guangdong Province, the
PRC, aiming to reduce the product cost by self-manufacturing
rather than Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) to outside
supplier, and increase the efficiency and attaining more stringent
quality control on its own brand products.

The Group has laid a strong foundation for a long term development
in the healthcare segment. Although the market environment is very
competitive, the Group believes that this segment is a niche market
and in the long run, it will generate sustainable revenue and bring
in value for the Group. Most importantly, the Group is dedicated to
nurture children and sincerely believes that children are the most
cherished member of our society, and it is our top priority to care
for them.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the Year, the Group’s total revenue amounted to approximately
HK$184.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately 2.4%
from HK$188.6 million for the last year. The Group recorded a net
loss of approximately HK$11.6 million, comparing with approximately
HK$7.2 million for the last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the Year.

“E— )\
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV

PROSPECTS

Despite the difficult market conditions, the Board believes that “Hin
Sang ($74) ” has been well positioned and able to meet the growing
demand for high-quality healthcare supplements from consumers
in Hong Kong and China. Therefore, the Group is confident that
Hong Kong market can still provide a stable platform for its business
development. To cope with the upcoming challenges and seize
future opportunities, the Group will continue to remain prudent
and implement the following strategies to create value for our
Shareholders:

(a) Actively expanding the industrial
sightseeing tourism business

The Group is actively expanding the Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion
(B LTHSE) as a key project in the industrial tourism business
to capture this fast-growing health preservation market. People
have been in the quest for health and longevity since ancient
times. In Chinese history, Peng Zu (8248), a famous the god
of longevity, had lived more than 800 years old. Proficient
in various health regimens, Peng Zu was recognized as the
ancestor of Chinese health preservation practices by future
generations. The Group will expand the Pengzu Hin Sang
Pavilion, a service center based on Pengzu TCM health
preservation techniques, to provide overall conditioning for the
human body. In addition, the Group is committed to upholding
Pengzu’s health preservation values to develop the industrial
tourism business and expand industrial park tourism as main
resources based on the entire enterprise or industrial park.
Integrated with the surrounding environment and other tourism
resources, the Pengzu Hin Sang Pavilion will be developed
into an industrial tourism that covers comprehensive tourism
areas, such as sightseeing, leisure and science promotions.
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(b) Developing new products and brands for

mother-infant healthcare

The Group is still preparing to launch a series of new products
for the mother-infant market this year, three of which are to
meet the beauty, bodycare, nourishment and other needs of
women, especially for a new generation of women concerned
with their health. Those products will be launched under a
new brand “Hin Mei (§73€) ”, and expected to be publicized in
October of 2019 through effective and innovative promotion
channels. Children’s series will also be added by some Chinese
patent drug products to further enhance the portfolio of our
own brand products. Owing to the huge development potential
of the market, the Group will expand the market with mid-to-
high end products, expecting new products to gain market
share in mother-infant health food products market in both
HK and the PRC.

Independent production of health
supplements in Yunfu City, Guangdong
Province, China, rather than original
equipment manufacturers (“OEM”)
production plants

The Group plans to enhance the production efficiency of its
own brand products to capture future opportunities. The Group
intends to build a production plants for health supplements in
Yunfu City, Guangdong Province, the PRC, which will help to
reduce production costs, improve efficiency and implement
stricter quality control of its own branded healthcare products
by self-production rather than OEM outsourcing to outside
suppliers. On 9 October 2017, the Group paid RMB17.4 million
(equivalent to HK$20.7 million) as land use rights payment in
relation to the acquisition of a piece of land, and the production
plant is still under construction stage.

B )\ B WEEH
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
BV

(d) Expanding sales opportunities in overseas

markets

As Hong Kong’s business matures, the Group also plans
to expand overseas markets in addition to actively entering
the Chinese market. At present, the Group’s products are
prepared to be exported to Australia and many countries
in Southeast Asia, including Vietnam, Thailand, Burma,
Kampuchea, Malaysia and Singapore. The Group will also
expand sales network and recruit related teams in line with
the future development, hoping to increase its overall turnover
and profit from 2019 onward.

(e) The Group will further expand cross-border e-commerce

and explore international overseas e-commerce for its own
brand products, in order to increase the Group’s turnover
and contribute to its profit.
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members of the board of Directors, management and employees
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Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. will continue to make effort
to create greater values for our Shareholders and investors.

Yours faithfully
Pang Siu Hin
Chairman

25 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (§74)” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit,
the Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming
products of reputable brands. It is also developing its business in
mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis and
treatment services projects.

For the Year, the Group’s revenue was approximately HK$184.0
million, representing a decrease of approximately 2.4% as
compared to approximately HK$188.6 million for the last year. The
Group has four business segments classified by their ownership,
licensing rights and services rendered. During the Year, the Product
Development Segment, selling the Group’s own brand products
with a relatively high gross profit margin, was still the largest
segment of the Group which contributed approximately 96.3%
(2018: 95.8%) of the Group’s revenue. On the other hand, the
revenue contribution from the Brand Development and Management
Segment fell from approximately 3.3% of the total revenue for the
last year to approximately 2.7 % of the total revenue for the Year. The
Trading of Goods Segment recorded a continuous drop in revenue
and its revenue contribution remains in low level of approximately
0.2% (2018: 0.4%). Healthcare Segment, being in start-up stage,
only accounted for approximately 0.8% (2018: 0.5%) of the total
revenue for the Year.

The Group’s business operations are mainly based in Hong
Kong, though its products are distributed through distributors
appointed in the PRC, Macau, and export to markets such as
Malaysia. Revenue generated from Hong Kong market for the Year
recorded approximately HK$144.7 million (2018: HK$145.9 million),
representing approximately 78.7% of the total revenue for the Year
(2018: 77.4%). On the other hand, revenue generated from the
PRC market for the Period recorded approximately HK$39.3 million
(2018: HK$41.0 million), representing approximately 21.3% of the
total revenue for the Year (2018: 21.7%). The revenue generated
from sales in Hong Kong decreased due to weakened purchasing
power of tourists from the PRC under the Individual Visit Scheme.
Also, the revenue generated from sales in the PRC decreased due
to weakened purchasing power of citizen of the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i wi B o3 AT

Product Development Segment

Under the Product Development Segment, the Group develops and
sells healthcare products, personal care products and household
products under its own brand names, mainly being “Hin Sang ($7
A)”, “Tai Wo Tong (KF1E)”, “Shuang Long (E%)” and “King’s
Antiseptic (& E)”. The Group started developing the “Hin Sang
(DT4E)” brand in year 2004 mainly for its health supplements. “Tai Wo
Tong (AF1E)” was developed in year 2012 mainly for the Group’s
proprietary Chinese medicine category. With a view to further
enhancing brand recognition of the Group’s own brand products,
the Group launched several products during 2018, including but
not limited to “Hin Sang Daily Appetite Probiotic Formula for Kids
(Granules) ($TER B2 R Em AR AHA)”, “Hin Sang Pipa Juhong
Honey for Kids ($T4&/NZ#EIEIFLIE)” and “Hin Sang Appetite
Support for Kids (Syrup) (74725 B % Tk F 5&)”.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$177.2 million
for the Year, represented a slightly decrease of approximately 1.9%
comparing to approximately HK$180.6 million for the last year. This
segment’s profit for the Year was approximately HK$35.7 million,
decreased slightly comparing to approximately HK$36.8 million
for the last year, which was mainly due to decrease in other gains
and losses for the Year, as compared to last year. This segment’s
profit margin for the Year was approximately 20.2% while the profit
margin for the last year was approximately 20.4%.

Brand Development and Management Segment

The Group has a proven history of managing and developing
a number of brands for its brand proprietors (who are mainly
manufacturers and brand proprietors of the products) in respect of
their personal care products mainly in the Hong Kong market since
1999. The Group entered into an exclusive distribution agreement
with each of the brand proprietors and provided them with one-stop
marketing, sales and distribution, logistic and delivery services for
their branded products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Amongst the products managed and developed by the Group
for the brand proprietors, the major brands are “Pahmi (&3F)”,
“Venic (fEHESR)”, “Zici (Z%)” and “Sunew (B9%7)”. The revenue
of this segment was approximately HK$4.9 million for the Year,
represented a decrease of approximately 22.1% comparing to
approximately HK$6.3 million for the last year. Such significant
decrease was mainly due to the shift of focus by the management
of the Group to the Product Development Segment during the Year
in order to enhance the brand image of the Group’s own-branded
products. This segment recorded a profit of approximately HK$1.3
million for the Year while a profit of approximately HK$0.6 million
was recorded for the last year.

Trading of Goods Segment

The Group has served its trade customers with high quality products
sourced from authorized dealers and overseas suppliers. Products
within this segment with low profit margin will be phased out, and
more resources will be put into Product Development Segment
which is expected to yield higher profit margin.

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$372,000 for the
Year, represented a significantly decrease of approximately 46.9%
comparing to approximately HK$700,000 for the last year and it
accounted for approximately 0.2% and 0.4% of the Group’s revenue
for the Year and for the last year respectively, as the management
of the Group focused on the Product Development Segment during
the Year. This segment’s profit for the Year was approximately
HK$105,000 as compared to approximately HK$71,000 segment’s
loss for the last year.

Healthcare Segment

Healthcare segment provides different types of healthcare related
services and products in Hong Kong and the PRC for mothers and
children by establishment of Clinics with medical treatment and
consultation by experienced Chinese physician who specialised in
mother-infant Chinese medical healthcare.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
o L i e o A

The revenue of this segment was approximately HK$1.5 million
and it accounted for approximately 0.8% of the Group’s revenue
for the Year. This segment’s loss for the Year was approximately
HK$26.7 million as compared to approximately HK$15.8 million
for the last year, the significant increase due to this segment is
still in start-up stage with heavily operating costs incurred before
generating decent revenue.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had a total of 221 staff as at 31 March 2019. The
employees of the Group are on fixed salary, sales commission
individually and year-end discretionary performance bonus. The
Group has devised an assessment system for its employees
and the Group uses the assessment result for salary review and
promotion decisions. All of the employees undergo a performance
appraisal once a year. Such an appraisal provides the Group with
an opportunity to assess each individual employee’s strengths and
areas for improvement, thereby enabling the Group to effectively
train and develop each individual employee. A Share Option Scheme
was adopted in September 2014 to recognise and acknowledge
those employees who have made contribution to the Group.

PROSPECTS

The Group is confident that Hong Kong market can still provide a
stable platform for its business to expand. The Group continues
its effort in new product development in order to enrich health
supplements portfolio and enhance the brand image as being a
specialist in providing health supplements. The Group ensures
that only those products with high sales volume potential should
be retained in its product portfolio. At the same time, the Group
will also focus on China’s market development, especially in the
health supplement market for children. The Group believes that
this market will be greatly benefited by the launch of China’s “two-
child” policy. To seize this opportunity, the Group will continue to
expand its distribution network by recruiting additional distributors
and put more resources to promote corporate image in order to
expand its customer base.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has outlined the following strategies for its future
business development, with caution but aim to creating values for
the Shareholders:

(@) To continue enhancing brand recognition of
the Group’s own brands

The Group has developed the “Hin Sang ($74)” brand into
a well-recognised brand in Hong Kong through an effective
targeted advertising program which is well-positioned
emphasising on product safety and quality.

The Group continued focusing on and applying its brand
strategies of multichannel marketing and diverse product
portfolios. The Group adopted a market oriented research
and product development strategy to meet evolving customer
demands and needs while achieving rapid growth. The Group’s
new product development initiative for the coming year will
focus on developing more products in mother and children
health supplements in Hong Kong and the PRC.

(b) To expand the manufacturing arm of the
Group

The Group plans to enhance the production efficiency of its own
brand products in order to capture future opportunities. The
Group intends to develop a production plant for manufacturing
health supplements in Yunfu City of the Guangdong Province,
the PRC, aiming to reduce the product cost by self-production
rather than Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM”) to outside
supplier, and increase efficiency and attaining more stringent
quality control on its own brand healthcare products. On 9
October 2017, the Group paid RMB17.4 million (equivalent
to HK$20.7 million) as land use right payment in relation to
acquisition of a piece of land, and the production plant is
under construction stage. As at 31 March 2019, the Group
has paid RMB46.7 million (equivalent to HK$54.0 million) as
construction in progress.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i wi B o3 AT

(c) To expand e-commerce for own-branded
products

The Group will continue to enhance its e-commerce platform
which focus on online sales of the products under “Hin Sang
($T4)”, through which customers, particularly those in the PRC
can place orders online and enjoy home delivery services. Due
to the gradual popularity of online shopping, especially in the
PRC market, revenue from e-commerce platforms accounted
for approximately HK$17.9 million (2018: HK$16.5 million) of
the Group’s total revenue for the Year. The Group will continue
to introduce more high quality health supplements on online
platforms to expand our product portfolio and market scale.

*  The English name is for identification purposes only

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately HK$184.0 million for the
Year as compared to HK$188.6 million for the last year, representing
a decrease of approximately 2.4%. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in its sales of products under the Brand Development
and Management Segment and Trading of Goods Segment.

During the Year, the revenue generated from the Product
Development Segment decreased by approximately HK$3.4
million, representing a decrease of 1.9% as compared to the
last year. The revenue generated from the Brand Development
and Management Segment and the Trading of Goods Segment
decreased by approximately HK$1.4 million and HK$0.3 million
respectively, representing a decrease of approximately 22.1% and
46.9% as compared to the last year. The decrease in revenue for
these segments was mainly due to the decline in revenue from the
Hong Kong market, as a result of the stagnant retail market in Hong
Kong which result in a cautious sentiment of the local customers.
Revenue generated from Healthcare segment was approximately
HK$1.5 million and it accounted for approximately 0.8% of the
Group’s revenue for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales decreased slightly by 1.4% from
approximately HK$57.4 million for the last year to approximately
HK$56.6 million for the Year. The reason was primarily due to the
drop in the cost of sales under the Product Development, Brand
Development and Management Segment and Trading of Goods
Segment by approximately 5.7%, 25.4% and 63.2% respectively
as compared to the last year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by 2.9% from approximately
HK$131.2 million for the last year to approximately HK$127.4 million
for the Year. The gross profit margin for the Year decreased slightly
from 69.6% to 69.2%, which was mainly resulted from drop of sales
of higher profit margin products from the Product Development
Segment.

Other Income

The Group’s other income decreased from approximately HK$6.4
million for the last year to approximately HK$4.4 million for the Year.
Such slight decrease of other income was mainly due to the dividend
income from listed equity securities of approximately HK$2.2 million
which is partially set-off by the decrease in interest income from
bank deposits of approximately HK$1.8 million.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a loss of approximately
HK$11.7 million (2018: a loss of approximately HK$11.6 million).
The loss was attributable to a fair value loss on held for trading
investment of approximately HK$10.2 million together with net
foreign exchange loss of approximately HK$1.2 million for the Year
(2018: net foreign exchange gain of approximately HK$5.8 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B B i wi B o3 AT

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by 28.2% from
approximately HK$37.9 million for the last year to approximately
HK$27.2 million for the Year. Such decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was attributable to the decrease in advertising expenses
in Hong Kong due to the change of the Group’s marketing and
advertising strategy by conducting more marketing and advertising
on paper media rather than on TV media in Hong Kong.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by HK$11.5 million or 13.2%
from approximately HK$87.1 million for the last year to approximately
HK$98.6 million for the Year which was mainly attributable to (i)
the increase of depreciation and amortisation expenses from
approximately HK$10.2 million for the last year to approximately
HK$12.4 million for the year; (i) the increase in legal and professional
fee from HK$5.5 million for the last year to approximately HK$6
million for the year; (iii) the increase in staff costs (excluding share-
based payment expenses) from approximately HK$30.8 million for
the last year to approximately HK$31.3 million for the Year; (iv)
increase in office expenses from approximately HK$2.4 million for
the last year to approximately HK$3.1 million for the Year, which
is offset by the decrease in donation from HK$2.1 million for the
last year to approximately HK$1.5 million for the year. Healthcare
segment accounts for 19.9% among the incensement of HK$11.5
million.

Taxation

The Group’s tax charge decreased by 50.4% from approximately
HK$8.3 million for the last year to approximately HK$4.1 million for
the Year. The decrease in tax charge was due to reduced provision
of Hong Kong Profits Tax at 16.5% which has been made based
on the assessment of profit before tax of the individual operating
companies.

Loss/Profit for the Year

During the Year, the Group recorded a net loss of approximately
HK$11.6 million for the Year compared to approximately HK$7.2
million for the last year.

22 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

HERDHEHBAX
HERSHEHAIHEAFNHNITIBE
BT T BR282%EARFEHHN2T2EH S
B HEERHEAIRMETIBER
EBRRESERER AEEEZR
MEFRBETMEEHEEESEZY
Eﬁ&mTEm O MBS R
BYREBNEERAIRMD -

TR X

THHRAIZBHEFHNTAEE L TIE
MISEBETHIB2%EREEN L
986BE BB TEHN()ITE K EH
FHYmEFNHNI0O2AEEETEMNE
REENHI24BEB T () EERE
X¥EHAEFHNS5EEETHEMER
FEMH6E E B U (i)B T K A(T
BREABROEERNONZREAIBERF
MANSEBETEMEARAFENL
BI3HEEB T (WHAHRIXEEFN
HoAB BRETTEMELRFE M L3.1
BEAT MERBREBREZFN21BE
BLTRIPERNFENNISBEEB LA
K- NI 5EEBTLHh F
5 8B 15 19.9% °

i 18

AEEZMBEXHHBAEFHNLNSIEEH
BB APE04%EARFENNIIBE S
AL - BEIEHRLS TERIEENSR
BNEHEERL  HIBRE Y G R &
i RN A B BR AT & A 5T 2 16.5% Y B

EEHEEY .

EET R 1=

FRNEE &R
RAFE AEERAFEFEERBFEB

BH16EBB T MEFE AHT.2
BBBIT-

Annual Report 2018/2019



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Comprehensive Income

The Group recorded other comprehensive loss increased by 460%
from comprehensive income of approximately HK$123.5 million
for the last year to comprehensive loss of approximately HK$444.5
million for the Year as result of a fair value loss on an available-for-
sale investment of approximately HK$435.1 million.

Equity Instruments at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income/Available-for-sale
Investments

The Group held certain investments for medium to long term
purpose, and it represented investment in two listed equity securities
which are stated at fair value.

The first listed equity security represents 118,765,000 shares in
Fullshare (stock code: 607), and there was no addition or disposal
of the shares of Fullshare during the Year. As at 31 March 2019,
the carrying amount of these shares amounted to approximately
HK$124.7 million (as at 31 March 2018: HK$516.6 million), with the
fair value loss of approximately HK$391.9 million was recognised
as other comprehensive loss for the Year, and these shares
represented approximately 0.6% of the issued ordinary shares of
Fullshare as at 31 March 2019. The carrying amount of these shares
represented approximately 18.7% of the total assets of the Group
as at 31 March 2019.

The second listed equity security represents 45,411,600 shares in
Nanjing Sinolife United Company Limited (“Nanjing Sinolife”) (stock
code: 3332). With reference to the Company’s circular dated 21
September 2017, the Company purchased these shares from a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Fullshare with the consideration of
HK$73,112,676 and the transaction was completed on 18 October
2017. There was no addition or disposal of this investment during
the Year. As at 31 March 2019, the carrying amount of these shares
amounted to approximately HK$13.6 million, with an impairment
loss of approximately HK$43.2 million recognised for the Year due to
significant decline in the market value compared with the purchase
cost, and these shares represented approximately 16.7% of the
issued ordinary shares of Nanjing Sinolife as at 31 March 2019. The
carrying amount of these shares represented approximately 2.0%
of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2019.

The fair value of these securities as at the date of this annual report
was approximately HK$69.9 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B i wi B o3 AT

Inventories

The Group’s inventories decreased by 31.3% from approximately
HK$9.6 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$6.6 million
as at 31 March 2019 which was primarily due to the increase in
finished products for distribution by 38.1% from approximately
HK$8.4 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$5.2 million
as at 31 March 2019.

Held for Trading Investment

The Group held several listed equity securities for short term trading
purpose and they are stated at fair value. The largest portion of
listed equity security represents 13,710,000 shares in Nanjing
Sinolife and 4,000,000 shares in Mansion International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8456). As at 31 March 2019, the carrying
amount of these shares amounted to approximately HK$5.2 million.
The carrying amount of these shares represented approximately
0.8% of the total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2019. The
fair value of these securities as at the date of this annual report was
approximately HK$5 million.

Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables decreased by 19.2% from
approximately HK$21.8 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$17.6 million as at 31 March 2019, which was primarily
attributable to the decrease in trade receivables from distributors
arising from the purchase of healthcare products of the Product
Development Segment.

Trade Payables

The Group’s trade payables decreased by approximately 40.0% from
approximately HK$9.5 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$5.7 million as at 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Liquidity, Gearing Ratio and Capital Structure

The Group’s bank balances and cash were mainly denominated
in HKD and RMB, the balances were decreased by approximately
65.7% from approximately HK$186.0 million as at 31 March 2018
to approximately HK$63.8 million as at 31 March 2019. As at 31
March 2019, the amount of Group’s outstanding bank borrowings
was approximately HK$134.8 million; and the amount of unutilized
banking facilities was approximately HK$99.6 million. The gearing
ratio (total debts divided by total equity) as at 31 March 2019 was
0.3 (31 March 2018: nil). The current ratio (total current assets
divided by total current liabilities) as at 31 March 2019 was 0.7 (31
March 2018: 7.5).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors were not aware of any significant
events that would have resulted in material contingent liabilities.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 March 2019, the carrying value of the assets of the Group
were pledged in favor of banks was approximately HK$264.7 million.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total capital commitments
of HK$228.4 million in respect of the acquisition of property, plant
and equipment.

Financial Management and Policy

The Group continues to adopt prudent financing and treasury
policies. The Group’s entire financing and treasury activities are
centrally managed and controlled. Implementation of the Group’s
related policies is made under collective but extensive considerations
on liquidity risk, financing cost and exchange rate risk. The executive
Directors, with the assistance of the Group’s chief financial officer,
are responsible for identifying, reviewing, evaluating and analyzing
the investment opportunities of the Group. The executive Directors
also regularly monitor the cash position and funding requirements
of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
wH LR AR HE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, MH (£ 2%T), aged 54, was appointed in
October 2010 as an executive Director. He is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group since 1996. He is responsible for the overall strategic
planning, formulation of the corporate policies and the day-to-
day management of the Group. He is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pang has about 20 years of
experience in the distribution, marketing and sale of healthcare
products, personal care products and household products, the
experience of which was gained from the operation of the Group.
Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce since 2005, the honourable president of The
Cosmetic & Perfumery Association of Hong Kong Limited (&8t
mEZEHE AR A R]) in 2008, the honourable chairman of the Hong
Kong Chinese Medicine Industry Association Limited (&% F 253 17
2R A7])in 2009. Mr. Pang was appointed as the vice president
of Hong Kong & Kowloon Kit Yeung Clansmen General Association
Limited (&7 /1L BE 1815 R 4548 & B IR 2 7]) in 2009, the executive vice
president in 2013 and became perpetual honourable president in
2017. Since 2009, Mr. Pang was appointed as the director of Chiu
Chow Clansmen’s Association of Yuen Long District, Limited (JTRA
= 5#1 [B 28 & B R A A)), the vice president in 2011 and became the
chairman in 2017. In 2010, he became the life honorary chairman
of Hong Kong Listed Chinese Medicine Practitioners Association
(BARYIPEHE), and titled as the advisor in 2016. Mr. Pang
was awarded Honorary Fellow (FPVCB (Hon)) by The Professional
Validation Centre of Hong Kong Business Sector in 2019.

Mr. Pang is an active participant in the work of charities, appointed
as the director of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong from 2009 to
2011, the vice chairman since 2012, the chairman since 2017, and
became the perpetual adviser since 2018. Mr Pang was awarded
MH in 2018 for his dedicated community service, particularly his
contributions to the work of Pok Oi Hospital. He worked as the
honourable president of Junior Police Call (Yuen Long District)
since 2010, a member of the standing committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, Jieyang City, the PRC,
a member of Yuen Long Town Area Committee under the Home
Affairs Department in 2012, a member of the Committee on the
Promotion of Civic Education under the Home Affairs Department
in 2014, the honourable president of Yuen Long District Healthy
City Association Limited in 2017, and the standing vice president of
thelst session of Friendship Association of the Political Consultative
Conference (Hong Kong Provincial Committee) in Jieyang in 2018.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Moreover, Mr. Pang became the co-chairman of New Territories
Walk for Millions Organizing Committee of The Community Chest of
Hong Kong (B Az &) since 2014 and appointed as the chairman
in 2017. He was titled as the vice president of Shenzhen Enterprise
Confederation (IS =) in 2015, and the executive vice
president of Tin Yan Charity Organization (K& & /% T ) and the
honourable president of Shen Kong Jiexi Chamber of Commerce
Limited (ZEBAEE AR AF) in 2016. In 2017, Mr. Pang was
appointed as the honourable advisor of Hong Kong Children,
Babies, Maternity Industries Association Limited (B8 2 LS £ <
B[R~ 7)), the honourable president of the management committee
in Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation Limited (78 & (3 %&
ZH L e AR A R]) and the vice president of the Jiangsu Province
Reflecting Health Industry Association (T# & XATREITEHE)
and president of its children’s health preservation branch. He is also
the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association
focusing on the development of education work in the PRC since
2010. Mr. Pang Siu Hin is the husband of Ms. Kwan Lai Man.

Ms. Kwan Lai Man (BB ), aged 47, was appointed in October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Kwan is a founder of the Group
and has been the Managing Director of the Group since 1996. She
is responsible for supervising the Group’s business operations. She
is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. She has
over 20 years of experience in the distribution, marketing and sale
of healthcare products, personal care products and household
products, the experience of which was gained from the operation
of the Group. She is also devoted in the development of education
work in PRC and is the life honorary chairman of Xuan Yuan
Education Fund Association since 2010. In 2017, she is appointed
as the vice president of Hong Kong Children, Babies, Maternity
Industries Association Limited (822 EXHBEH R A A)). She
is appointed as the member of Committee for Yun Fu City of the
People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2018 and appointed
the Director of board of directors of Pok Oi Hospital in Hong Kong
since 2018. Ms. Kwan Lai Man is the wife of Mr. Pang Siu Hin.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
wH LR AR HE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wai Ling (E2£1), aged 58, was appointed in November
2010 as a non-executive Director. Ms. Wong has more than 25 years
of experience in accounting, taxation and auditing. She received
a bachelor’s degree in arts from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1983 and a diploma in Accounting and Finance from
the London School of Economics and Political Science, University
of London in the United Kingdom in July 1985. Ms. Wong was
registered as a certified public accountant of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in June 1991 and an associate of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in April 1990.
She has worked for more than seven years in major international
accounting firms and major local accounting firms before she set
up her own accounting firm, W. L. Wong & Co., in Hong Kong in
19983. Since then, she has been practising as a Certified Public
Accountant. Ms. Wong is an independent non-executive director of
three Hong Kong listed companies, namely, Yongsheng Advanced
Materials Company Limited (stock code: 3608), Overseas Chinese
Town (Asia) Holdings Limited (stock code: 3366) and AVIC
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 161). Ms. Wong also
acts as the chairperson of the audit committee of each of these
listed companies. Ms. Wong was an independent non-executive
director of China Ruifeng Renewable Energy Holdings Limited (stock
code: 527) and resigned on 31 January 2019. She was an executive
director of Tonking New Energy Group Holdings Limited (previously
known as JC Group Holdings Limited) (GEM stock code: 8326)
and resigned on 18 October 2016. She was also an independent
non-executive director of Glory Flame Holdings Limited (GEM stock
code: 8059) and resigned on 22 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping (R& ), aged 40, was appointed in July
2016 as a non-executive Director. Mr. Yuen is qualified lawyer in
both Hong Kong, and England and Wales. Mr. Yuen has over 12
years of experience practicing as a lawyer in the PRC and Hong
Kong, and has extensive experience in corporate law, China-
related public and private mergers and acquisitions, and capital
market transactions. Mr. Yuen obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Laws in 2001 and completed the PCLL programme in 2002 in
the University of Hong Kong, then undertook his traineeship and
worked as a lawyer in various leading international firms. He worked
as a special counsel in the Shanghai office of Baker & McKenzie
and was responsible for the firm’s securities practice in Shanghai.
Mr. Yuen is also an independent non-executive director of Sun
Cheong Creative Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 1781)
since August 2018, an executive director, the vice-chairman of the
board and the co-chief executive officer of LongiTech Smart Energy
Holding Limited (stock code: 1281) since April 2018, the chief
executive officer and an executive director of Applied Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 519) since September 2016, and
a non-executive director of China High Speed Transmission
Equipment Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 658) since December
2016, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Yuen has been a director of Pok Oi Hospital
(a charity organisation) since April 2017. Mr. Yuen was the chief
operating officer of Fullshare Holdings Limited (stock code: 607)
from October 2014 to March 2018, Fullshare Holdings Limited is a
substantial shareholder of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
wH LR AR HE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Kit (2| & #), aged 74, retired from The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited (“HSBC”) in December 2000
after more than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions
he held in HSBC, he was the assistant general manager and head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and assistant general manager
and head of strategic implementation, Asia-Pacific Region. He is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers (the “Institute”).
He was the chairman of the Institute’s executive committee (from
January 1999 to December 2000) and is currently the honorary
advisor of the Institute’s executive committee. He has served as a
member of a number of committees appointed by the Government
of Hong Kong Special Administration Region, including the Advisory
Council on the Environment (from October 1998 to December
2001), the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May 2001),
the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (from January 2000 to December
2003), the Environment and Conservation Fund Committee (from
August 2000 to October 2006), the Innovation and Technology
Fund (Environment) Projects Vetting Committee (from January 2000
to December 2004) and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy
Sub-committee (from February 1990 to March 2006). He has also
served as the chairman of Business Environment Council Limited
(from September 1998 to December 2001). Currently, he is also an
independent non-executive director of Royale Furniture Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1198), Leoch International Technology Limited
(stock code: 842), Century Sunshine Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 509) and Janco Holdings Limited (stock code: 8035). He is
also an executive director of Chinlink International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 997). The shares of Royale Furniture Holdings Limited,
Leoch International Technology Limited, Century Sunshine Group
Holdings Limited, Chinlink International Holdings Limited are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The shares of Janco
Holdings Limited are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
He was an independent non-executive director of Hang Pin Living
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as Highlight China
|oT International Limited) (stock code: 1682) from September 2010
to September 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu (Z#K), aged 61, was appointed in September
2014 as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee has about
30 years of experience in commercial accounting and corporate
finance. Mr. Lee became a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in April 2001 and an associate of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in February
1987. He obtained a diploma in business administration from Hong
Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue Yan
University) in July 1983. He has worked in the Stock Exchange for
around 15 years from 1986 to 1993 and from 1997 to 2005, his
duties included regulating and monitoring the Hong Kong listed
companies in relation to their compliance with the Listing Rules and
processing new listing applications. His last position with the Stock
Exchange was an assistant vice president of the Listing Division.
Mr. Lee was also a senior consultant of an investment bank for 5
years from 2007 to 2012. Mr. Lee has been an independent non-
executive director of Huabao International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 336) since 1 May 2006 and Yee Hop Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1662) since 25 November 2015, the shares of which are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny (2 ), aged 50, was appointed
in November 2010 as an independent non-executive Director. Dr.
Tang has over 15 years of experience in the financial and securities
sector. He is the Election Committee Member (Financial Services) of
HKSAR. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in business, majoring in
finance from Edith Cowan University, Australia in February 1993 and
holds a PhD. degree in Economics from Renmin University of China
in July 2007. He became a senior associate of the Australian Institute
of Banking and Finance in December 1995 and was appointed as
Hong Kong Chief Analyst by the Finance and Securities Institute
of Renmin University of China in December 2010. He is also the
executive director of AP Assets Limited and the non-executive
director of Edvance International Holdings Limited (stock code:
8410), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
He is also the chairman of The Hong Kong Institute of Financial
Analysts and Professional Commentators Limited and the executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Securities Professionals
Association. He is the Committee Member of The Listed Companies
Council, Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association and the Vice
Chairman of the Hong Kong Girl Guides New Territories Region
Association. He is a Co Founder and Chief Executive of Royston
Securities Limited since February 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
wH LR AR HE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Polien Kho (28E ), aged 36, was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 July 2017.
Ms. Kho is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators respectively. She has more than 11 years of
experience in producing company secretarial services to private
and listed companies.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheuk Wah Kit (EZ#), aged 36, is the Assistant Sales
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in July 2005 since
graduation. He is responsible for managing the daily operation of
the sales department. In particular, he is responsible for managing
skin care products, personal care products, general food products
as well as Chinese medicine products in Hong Kong and oversea
markets. He graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology with a bachelor’s degree in science in 2005. Since
then, he has been working at the Group’s sales department and
made valuable contribution to the Group. Mr. Cheuk is familiar with
the Group’s internal operation and external sales strategies. He has
accumulated 13 years of relevant experience.

Mr. Mak Wing Keung (% k&), aged 52, is the information
technology director of the Group. He joined the Group in May
2004 and is responsible for its network administration and provides
information technology support. He received a certificate of an
advanced diploma in computer studies and in electronic commerce
in the London International College for Further and Higher Education
in June and September 2001 respectively. Prior to joining the
Group, he has worked as a technical support supervisor providing
information technology support, network administration, hardware
and software development in a firm from 2002 to 2004 and has
worked as a supervisor supervising a team of technicians and
servicing personnel from 1993 to 2002 and has accumulated more
than 21 years of relevant experience.
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Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd.

(REAB BB > AR AT)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

B 121X 5% Stock Code: 6893

Environmental, Social and
Governance Report
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1)

2)

34

SCOPE OF REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report is
prepared in accordance with the Listing Rules’ Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”. The
report is published once a year. It covered the operations of
the head office of the Group in Tsim Sha Tsui, an operating
site in Yuen Long and the new principal place of business
in Shatin of the Group during the period from 1 April 2018
to 31 March 2019. The new place of business in Shatin has
commenced operation at the end of 2018.

GROUP’S POLICY

The Group has been consistently practising and striving to
improve its work in the areas of environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”). Consequently, policies have been
formulated to disclose the Group’s visions to shareholders
and the public on the followings:

To devote to society through contribution and services;

° To pursue continuous improvement in the culture of
governance;

o To collaborate with business partners and employees by
upholding accountability, fairness, devotion and integrity;

° To dedicate to attaining sustainable development and
achievement for all Shareholders and stakeholders; and

° To emphasise on environmental protection.

The Group believes ESG management can protect the
environment, establish a corporate green image, and then
promote sustainable business development and eventually
reduce the ESG risks affecting the way that the Group operates
the business.
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3) COMMUNITY SERVICE

“The Eternal Extension of Life” is the Group’s motto. By
connecting with the community, the Group is striving to instill
hope and provide support to the disadvantaged and contribute
to society, while cultivating a sense of belonging among the
Group’s employees. Driven by this social responsibility, the
Group took every effort to participate in community services
and charity events over the past years. The Group has attained
the award of “Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council
of Social Services for 12 years in a row.

Board members of the Group are actively dedicated to charity
events. Mr Pang Siu Hin, a Chairman of the Group is cordially
participating in public positions of social and charitable
organisations, including but not limited to a permanent advisor
of Pok Oi Hospital, an honorary president of Yuen Long
District Junior Police Calls Honorary President Committee
since 2010, an honorary president of Yuen Long District Fire
Safety Ambassador Honorary Presidents’ Association since
2011, and a committee member of Home Affairs Department
—Yuen Long Town Area Committee. Moreover, Ms Kwan Lai
Man, an Executive Director of the Group is a director of Pok
Oi Hospital 2018/19 board and a life honorary chairman of
Xuan Yuan Education Fund Association. Also, Mr Yuen Chi
Ping, a non-executive director of the Group is a director of
Pok Oi Hospital 2018/19 board.

Hin Sang Group | internation:
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Hin Sang Scholarship

“Hin Sang Scholarship” was established in 2015, aims at
awarding and sponsoring students from low-income families
in order to bring upon positive impact to their lives.

The 4th Hin Sang Scholarship was opened for application and
review since April 2018 with the aims to support outstanding
and talented students. The judging activities were divided into
5 groups, which covered pre-schools, kindergartens, primary
schools, secondary schools, and universities, from which a
total of 65 students were awarded this year. Each student
winner was awarded a scholarship of ranging from HK$2,000
to $5,000, gifts worth of HK$1,000 as well as the Certificate of
Award. Awards Ceremony for the 4th scholarship was already
held in August 2018 with participants from various sectors,
including councillors, academia, entrepreneurs, celebrities
and artists who shared their experience to encourage the
awarded students. The Group will continue to establish the
sponsorship in hope of giving more competitive edges to the
students, especially those from low-income families, returning
their contribution to the society in the future.
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Hin Sang Community Involvement

In recent years, the Group has diligently devoted resources
to developing products and services for women and children
in local and greater China markets. Apart from a specialized
children’s TCM health center in Hong Kong, the Group has built
another two Chinese medicine clinics in Nanjing. Moreover,
the Group has invested a subsequent amount of resources to
invent products that treat various health problems especially
for children. The Group has also acquired registration numbers
(HKC) for many of its product formulas from the Chinese
Medicine Council of Hong Kong. In the future, the Group
will continue to contribute to the market, providing quality
products and essential elements for a healthy life, and to
promote health and wellness for the public.

Hin Sang Volunteering Team

The Group encourages employees to participate in volunteering
work. “Hin Sang Volunteering Team” was formed by our
employees in 2006 which actively participated in various
community and charitable activities. During the reporting
period, the team participated in various events including “Pok
Oi Cycle for Millions” and “Community Chest Walk for Millions”
to raise charity funds for relevant institutions.

The Group is striving to allocate resources to support
different aspects of community activities, including education,
charity, environmental protection, communities’ cultural and
entertainment events. During the reporting period, the Group
mainly organized or participated in the following community
services/events:
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Cash Staff
Donation/ Product Involvement/
Sponsorship Donation Volunteering
RERW/ ERER EISH/
2y EIRE

Organisation Event Description

Bi EHRAR

Hin Sang Group (International) | Organised the 4th “Hin Sang Scholarship”, provided

Holding Co. Ltd.
T4 S B (B3R

financial aid to students from low-income families
in Hong Kong to help them improve their learning

BELHABRTREE

RENBEDELHREBTORAFRNER R
EEg

ERAA environment and promote diversified development. v v v
HBENEMMTARES] REABRRARER
SBEREVBEY HEPRENEZERE £
ESTLER-
Pok Oi Hospital Provided cash donations to support the needy in
BEER society v
ReRRXBEREZMHEAL
Pok Oi Hospital Provided health beverages for hospital staff in Pok Qi
BEER Hospital v
REREAmBSBERRET
Pok Oi Hospital Provided in-kind donations to education subsidiaries of
BEER Pok Oi Hospital, including day nursery, primary school, v
secondary school
EPNELBERRBETHRPL NE HE
Pok Oi Hospital Sponsored the “Pok Qi Cycle for Millions” to support
BEER the needy in society v v v
EYBEEBRBTINIKAETELHEAL
Hong Kong Children Sponsored products for Hong Kong Children
Foundation Foundation Charity Run 2018 v
EAREESE ENERTERAREE SRS R TAH 2018
Credit One World Charity Sponsored products for “After-school Support
Foundation Programme & Christmas Party” v
REEEES EYEmT I 2FREEAEEERRY
Sik Sik Yuen Provided TCM clinic coupons and product coupon v
BER REPEDEBEFRENEES
The Community Chest Provided cash and product donations and staff
EEAES participation in the Community Chest 50th Anniversary
Walk for Millions 4 v v
BRAGRER YHEIZALNGE50E4FA
BT
Hong Kong Yuen Long Chiu Provided in-kind donations to support the dancing
Kiu Engor Association activities hosted by the Association for celebration of
Limited the 2018 Chinese New Year in Yuen Long v v
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Awards and Achievements

The Group has attained a considerable number of awards for
the year ended 31 March 2019. Apart from 12 consecutive
years awarding the “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Service, the Group also continued with
the last year winning awards from the other institutions for
“Consumers’ Most Favourable Hong Kong Brand Gold”,
“GCCA 100% HK Branding Award”, and “Certificate of Merit —
Best in ESG Awards (Main Board, Small Market Capitalisation)
BDO ESG Awards 2019 ” which recognised the contribution of
the Group in the aspects of ESG reporting, employee benefits,
promotion of community services, product quality and value
creation to the society.

caringcompany
Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EELERERERE

“Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of

Social Service
EREASTeRBHESRE BRARE R

BDO ESG
Reans

|Bo I e M Mg -

CERTIFICATE of MERIT

“100% HK Branding Award” by Greater China
Corporation Association
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“Outstanding Corporate Social Responsibility Award”

by Mirror Post
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“Hong Kong Famous Brand Gold” by China Enterprise
Reputation & Credibility Association (Overseas)
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“BDO ESG Award — Merit Prize” by BDO “Your Choice@Focus White Collars’
JEBDO 78 Favorite Children’s Healthcare
[BDO ESG 4 B K #2 — 18 & 57 Supplements Brand Award” by Focus Media

¥ Focus Media %8 % [ Your Choice@Focus —
EERERETRREREB A & B KE]

“Hong Kong Top Brand” by Hong Kong Brand Development Council
BEELREERRBMRE IR L LM

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 4 +EER

The Group’s corporate governance policies are based on the N 5 B AR & B R BT B T AR A KT 8%
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance T EEBTADREEER
Report” as required by Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules WMEMERTLEBT ABE LB N
of the Stock Exchange which is committed to promoting a HTTE EHEXEENEE
corporate culture of trustworthiness, professional ethics and BEHNLENXLL - SENEERE
business integrity. The Group’s corporate values, missions B FTaMEBEFEHEER
and strategies are integrated with ethical business practices; WEBGMHEGES BEP HERD
the collaboration with customers, suppliers and employees MEIMGEI R AL EEX
are also based on this corporate culture. The Board and trikHE EFTFNERER
management at all levels strictly undertake these important FEANMGCEXEE@HEKLEITE
responsibilities at both individual and corporate level. HEAHEME-
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Code of Conduct

The Group has established a Code of Conduct for the
employees. The Board also adopts the provision in the
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Report of the Directors”
in the annual report as the basis for the Code of Conduct.

The Code is applicable to both management personnel
and general staff within the Group and has been clearly
communicated to all employees, including the new staff. The
Code of Conduct mainly covers three categories:

° Requesting for, receiving or providing benefits;
° Conflict of interest; and

o Confidentiality of information.

Anti-corruption

The Group is bound by rigid laws and compliances on anti-
corruption. All employees strictly follow all requirement to abide
by local regulations, perform duties with integrity, and prohibit
acceptance and offer of benefits. The anti-corruption policy
has been established and included in the Code of Conduct. For
reinforcing the effectiveness of the policy implementation, the
Group has arranged relevant training to employees. Training
classes totally amounted to 21.5 hours were provided. In the
year, the Group did not identify any legal violation or complaint
related to corruption.

Whistle-blowing Mechanism

The Group has established a whistle-blowing mechanism
to handle misconduct under the supervision of the Group’s
Chairman, Managing Director and the representatives of the
Audit Committee.

Employees are allowed to report and submit evidence of the
suspected or confirmed misconduct to the Group’s Chairman
and/or Managing Director and/or an Audit Committee
representative in verbal or written form (either anonymous or
bearing a name), and thereafter the Group shall launch internal
investigations. In case of violation of the laws, the Group shall
follow procedures to file to the relevant authority.
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5) EMPLOYMENT

42

The Group has formulated employment policies and guidelines
in accordance with the local regulations and complies with
the labour laws and related regulations listed in the PRC,
Hong Kong and other business regions. The Group currently
does not employ personnel below 18 years old and has never
engaged in forced labour. The Group also assures that no
employee’s salary is paid lower than the legal minimum wage
level as defined in the government regulations of all judicial
regions. During the reporting period, the Group did not identify
any legal violation regarding employment of child labour or
forced labour and did not identify or receive any legal violation
or complaint regarding discrimination or recruitment.

Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group values fair and equal opportunity for each
employee and is committed to eliminating any discrimination.
Recruitment is simply based on candidates’ experiences,
abilities and business needs, regardless of race, gender, age,
marital status, pregnancy, family status, sexual orientation,
religion, disability and nationality. All talented candidates and
employees can be hired and promoted, as well as eligible to
attend relevant training to meet business needs and personal
career development.

During recruitment, the Group checks identification documents
according to the local laws to prevent child labour and forced
labour. In case of child labour and/or forced labour, the
Group’s shall terminate the employment immediately. The
Group shall proceed in compliance with the local employment
regulations in case of termination on employment. For other
illegal incidents, the Group shall report the case to the local
enforcement agencies.

Retirement

Despite the mandatory retirement policy in place, the Group
will not refuse to consider applicants who are near retirement
age but still want to continue to work after retirement. For
each application of this category, the Group shall evaluate
the relevant staff’s individual situation, competence, past job
performance and the Group’s retirement policy, in order to
prevent age discrimination.
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Wages and Welfare

The Group’s wages and welfare policy is based on local industry
norms which shall be appropriately adjusted according to work
performance, experience and qualification of the employee.
Employee’s working hours, holidays, and other benefits are
based on the common practices of the local industry and
reasonably adjusted based on the employee’s experience and
seniority. The Group adopts key performance indicators as
one of the criteria for defining the employee incentive scheme.
Additionally, employee-oriented employment practices have
been adopted to appreciate working mother such as lactation
room.

As of 31 March 2019, there were 43 employees in Hong Kong,
in which 41 were full-time employees and 2 were contracted
employees. Their distribution was depicted as follows:

During the reporting period, the monthly average employee
turnover rate was 5.62%.

Turnover rate by gender
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6) OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND

SAFETY (OHS)

The Group remains highly attentive to health and safety.
Thereby, the Group ensures the workplace has adequate
lighting and ventilation systems and is always kept clean
and tidy with sufficient work space. The Group also provides
proper office equipment such as height adjustable chairs with
adjustable armrest and tilting backrest. The equipment is also
kept in a safe condition and firefighting facilities, as well as
fire drills, are arranged in accordance with the local laws in
the reporting period. Security measures have been adopted
to prevent unauthorized persons from entering and leaving
the Group’s operating areas.

Furthermore, the Group provides safety training for new
employees and provides relevant OHS training based on
the job nature of employees. This includes the provision of
employees with information about the laws and regulations in
OHS for employees’ understanding of such importance. During
the reporting period, the relevant employees were provided
with around 21.5 hours of training in occupational health &
safety.

In addition, the Group organised a “Hin Sang Health Day”
regularly. Hin Sang Health Day aims to coordinate a group
of employees participate in outdoor activities such as hiking,
playing sports, museum and heritage visits. This not only
promotes exercise but also promotes the benefit of being in
nature. A ot of research reveals the fact that the environment
can fuel our bodies, keep us relief, facilitate good sleep and
more importantly protect us from sickness and dissatisfaction.
Also, this can act as team-building activities for the employees
that connect with one another and live the lives to the fullest.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
violation against the local regulations in occupational health
and safety and did not identify any fatality but with regret that
the Group had 7 lost workdays resulting from work-related
accidents.
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7) EMPLOYEE TRAINING AND

46

DEVELOPMENT

The Group believes staff quality is a critical factor for maintaining
growth and improving profitability, whilst the level of service
and product quality are closely related to employee training
and development. Therefore, the Group strives to allocate
resources to implement an effective training system

e Orientation training for new employee(s);

° Regular training sessions including technical know-how
and soft skills training for existing employees;

° Training sessions conducted by internal or external
qualified personnel; and

° New employees are trained and assisted by experienced
employees to get familiar with the working condition and
procedures.

The Group arranges the employees to attend training by virtue
of corresponding job duties. Training covers topics of product
knowledge, sales techniques, quality control, as well as and the
latest laws and regulations of proprietary Chinese medicines
that may have a possible impact on business operations. This
not only enables employees to acquire the latest information
or skills but also enhances their self-confidence and capability
to cope with the rapidly changing market. Assessment is
conducted after training to evaluate the effectiveness and to
follow the employees’ career development.
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During the reporting period, the relevant training figures for
the operating sites in Hong Kong were depicted by gender
and employee category as follows:

Total number of employees trained

RAREHE EFLELEMLH
MEREEZIEERENREER
GlIE=S= i A N

Total number of training hours

TIEENBEAHK 13 48 B B

Male

25 25
B4
Female

18 18
%
Employee Category
& 885l
Senior Management 6 6
SRERE
Middle Management 11 11
R EEE
Junior Employees

= 2

NFE L 6 26

Total

By

8) SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group strives for partnering with suppliers who share the
same business philosophy in running the business at a fair,
honest and diligent manner. When selecting suppliers, the
Group also evaluates environmental, social and governance
factors in addition to the commercial and quality issues.

Apart from requesting the supplied products (including
packaging materials) are free from any toxic substances, the
Group also sets the standards of conduct in the procurement
contracts to encourage suppliers to share the same vision
with the Group. The scope of the standard of conduct shall
include the governance aspects of environmental protection
and social responsibility:

° Suppliers and their upstream entities do not force
employees to work in any form of violence or threat and
do not employ child labour;
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o Employment is solely based on working performance and
not affected by any discrimination against race, gender,
age, marital status, pregnancy, family status, sexual
orientation, religion, disability and nationality;

° Salary is paid in fair value and all other entitled benefits
are also fulfilled;

° The safe and healthy working environment shall
be provided in compliance with the local laws and
regulations;

° Business decisions adhere firmly to the principle of
sustainable development. Business processes shall
comply with the local regulations on environmental
protection; and

° Integration of the business and organization into the
circumstances of the community.

Furthermore, the Group encourages suppliers to achieve
management systems certification (including but not limited
to the ISO 9001, ISO 14001, SA 8000, and ISO 22000). In
addition, the Group shall regularly assess the performance of
suppliers for the room of improvements.

As of 31 March 2019, there was a total of 21 suppliers
distributed within Asia, of which 9 suppliers from Hong Kong,
9 suppliers from China, 2 suppliers from Taiwan and 1 supplier
from Japan. During the reporting period, the Group engaged 2
new suppliers and has evaluated them on their product quality
and safety requirements prior to the engagement. For some
existing critical suppliers, the Group also evaluated them and
arranged on-site assessment where necessary for assuring
the comprehensiveness and reliability of the evaluation.
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9) PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

Since the Group launches its own brands and acts as an
agency of personal care and health products for international
brands, as a result, the Group has a strict control in product
quality. The reporting scope has adopted the ISO 9001 quality
management system to ensure effective procedures and
processes are adopted for the production of excellent and safe
products. Upon receipt of materials, quality inspection process
is clearly defined and implemented according to the relevant
regulations. Each batch of products shall only be formally
released after it passed the inspection. All food, Chinese
medicine products must go through the testing on remained
pesticides, heavy metals, and micro-organisms. All products
which fall within the definition of proprietary Chinese medicines
under the Chinese Medicine Ordinance are regulated and
must meet the requirements in respect of safety, quality and
efficacy before they can be registered. The Group regularly
monitors the production and quality inspection procedures of
the suppliers to verify and confirm the suppliers’ capabilities
in the provision of compliant and safe products to the Group.

The Group has established the crisis management team
for handling emergency issues and formulating emergency
instruction for remediation of any issues and potential risks
incurred from product safety.

Fair Promotional Information

The Group complies in the Trade Descriptions Ordinance
that prohibits unfair trade practices including false trade
descriptions of services, misleading omissions, aggressive
commercial practices, bait advertising, bait-and-switch and
wrongly accepting payment. Therefore, all employees are
required to provide true and accurate product and service
information to customers when selling the products. The Group
also arranges appropriate training to ensure the personnel are
equipped with proper sales technique and accurate product
information.
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All products that are registered proprietary Chinese medicines,
the labelling must comply with the statutory labelling
requirements such as main ingredients, method of usage,
dosage, packing specifications, place of production, etc.
This enables customers to fully understand the products’
ingredients and then builds trust towards the products.
Customer service hotline is also set up and is printed on the
surface of each box of product that is easily accessible and
traceable to the customers to make after-sales enquiries when
necessary.

Handling of Customer Complaints

Being a responsible supplier of health and personal care
products, the reporting scope has handled all matters relating
to product quality in accordance with the ISO 9001 procedures,
including customer complaints about product quality:

o When receiving customer’s complaints or requests for
goods return, initial reply to customer will be given within
the time frame specified in the procedure;

° The Group’s customer service representatives or sales
team will resolve the complaint through phone, online or
in person; and

° Serious complaints will be followed up by the crisis
management team.

During the reporting period, the Group did not receive
any customer complaints or violations against the relevant
regulations in product responsibility, and no product was
recalled for the reasons of safety and health concerns amongst
all products sold.

PrABREMS KENERNT
BEHANEEERRER WE
By ERHNE BE BER
BEEMHET EEEFPENR
DTHREMNMKD  WHEMEZ
HERNEE - SETXRBEEPRP
RGRE TR BREMKREA
FTITEEFPFEHNNELERE
TEREM-

EFRFEE

ERBEANREER KRB A®Z
BEmHERN mFTEECZR
ISOQ01E F AR R IEFT B IR E
REEMBENSERE BEREFRY
EmEEMNERF:

e REEXFPARFIEMEND
X -@RERFHRENERE
RIEMIREEBEF

e KENEPRBARIEE
EEEBEFE EHBXIXR
BRADEBREBRF K

e BERFUMDEHEE A
BEIRE-

RNASHREHE &8I KK EBE
ERFERERERETHEEN
EP Y EECEEMTAAE
AAEEmAZ2HEEHREAMNS
2O Yy -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2018/2019



Management of Intellectual Property Rights

Intellectual property rights managed by the Group mainly cover
its own-branded products registered in the business regions.
To protect the rights of the registered brands, the Group
allocates resources to uphold confidential information such
as product specifications. The server storing such information
is equipped with a licensed firewall which restricts access from
external systems. Users are required to log in with passwords
and are allowed to access the authorized information only.

Apart from protecting own intellectual property rights, the
Group respects the intellectual property rights of the others
and will not use the third party’s intellectual property without
prior authorization. Any unlawful and inappropriate act is not
acceptable in the Group.

Maintenance of Customer Information

Although the Group’s direct customers are mainly enterprises,
their information is strictly handled in the same manner as
dealing with personal privacy. The Group is based on the
“Personal Data Protection (Privacy) Ordinance Cap. 486
(“Ordinance”) of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
for its own Privacy Policy, which ensures all collected, stored,
transmitted or used personal/corporate information are handled
according to the requirements specified by the Ordinance. The
Group’s management and staff maintain confidentiality and
properly retain all personal/corporate information collected,
stored, transmitted or used by the Group. Moreover, the Group
refuses to use any outdated and unauthorized software so as
to prevent data leakage and improve cybersecurity.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
complaint related to the privacy issue.
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10) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group upholds environmental protection as a corporate
culture and recognizes the operational impact on the
environment as an indispensable element in the decision-
making process. The Group is committed to complying with
all applicable local environmental regulations and other related
requirements for promoting sustainable development and

preventing environmental pollution.

a) Control of Greenhouses Gases (GHG)

and Pollutants Emission

Although industrial effluents are not applicable in the
operation of the Group, the Group strives to alleviate
the Group’s GHG emissions and pollutants by identifying
sources of GHG and defining the appropriate resolution.
The major source of GHG emission of the Group is
generated from purchased electricity, and vehicles
transportation. In view of that, the Group is striving to
reduce GHG emission sources, improve the efficiency of
related processes with GHG emissions, lower the use of
gasoline and increase the use of more environmentally

friendly fuels, etc.

Moreover, the Group’s head office is located in Tsim
Sha Tsui where is a city centre, within walking distance
to mass public transit. The Group encourages the
employees to make use of public transportations and
can be free from private vehicles, living in a sustainable
way. Also, the Group encourages the employees to use
video-conferencing instead of business travel to further
decrease GHG emission. The Group’s current emission
reduction measures include the use of the EU 5 trucks
across the board; adoption of detailed inventory plan
to reduce the number of shipments in procurement;
maximization the use of waterway transport. In addition,
advanced planning of shipping routes is adopted in order
to deploy the fastest and shortest route for delivery and
more importantly, to avoid peak seasons and roads with

heavy traffic jams.
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The Group’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensities

SERERREHNEEE
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Electricity used by
operational facilities (kwh)

BEREREE(TES

GHG emission volume
(tonne carbon dioxide equivalent)
BERBHRE(M_SRER)

148.72

GHG emission intensity
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0.00066

Annual shipment
volume

2FHRE

223,692

TOTAL GHG emission volume Annual shipment volume (Boxes)

BERBINEE

2FEHEEG

The reason contributing to the decrease in energy
consumption is the size of new warehouse in Shatin is
much smaller than the size of warehouse in Yuen Long.
Also, the total amount of energy used for air-conditioning
in 2018/19, which is the principle energy consumption
source of the Group, is lower than that in 2017/18 by
37.63%. Given the fact that the annual shipment volume
increased in the year, the diesel consumption of mobile
source has not been increased. The contributing reason
is due to the total number of customers remains steady
but rise in shipment volume.
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b)

Waste Disposal

During product design and sales planning, the Group
adopts the principle of waste reduction through innovative
product design, supply chain management, and waste
recycling. The Group does not generate hazardous
wastes from its current operations, however, a handful
of exhausted compact fluorescent lamp, batteries,
cartridges and toners are generated at the office. The
property management of the building is responsible for
dealing with the lamp and batteries, whereas, exhausted
cartridges and toners are collected and recycled by the
service provider. In response to the latest government
policy regarding the Producer Responsibility Scheme
(PRS) on waste electrical and electronic equipment
(WEEE), the Group also pays particular attention to the
WEEE such as computers, printers, scanners as well
as monitors if disposal is needed. Merely registered
suppliers/services providers will be employed to handle
and dispose WEEE properly and legally.

Yet some part of the operation areas had been renovated
for layout rearrangement during the reporting period,
this generated 16 tonnes of construction wastes. All
construction waste is handled by licensed and registered
suppliers and must be disposed of properly and complied
with the laws and regulations. If incompliance is identified,
the Group will reassess the supplier’s performance or
even remove it from the supplier list. In regard to other
recyclable wastes such as waste paper, those recycling
boxes are placed at the designated locations and are
handed over to the licensed recycling agencies. The
Group also encourage employees to engage in double-
sided photocopying and reuse single-sided used
papers to reduce paper wastage. Moreover, the Group
utilizes mobile applications (App) to receive orders from
customers. In addition, the Group provides reusable
cutleries and containers for guest to use at the office.
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For those operating sites located in Hong Kong, the main
type of packaging materials used by the Group is paper
and the total consumption in the reporting period was
139.80 tonnes in the reporting year. This is increased
dramatically when compared to that in last reporting year
due to the record has become more comprehensive and
accurate in packaging materials consumption.

Energy and Water Saving

In addition to the efforts for reducing GHG emissions
and waste generation, the Group has also taken
appropriate measures to conserve natural resources
with an aim of environmental protection. The Group’s
conservation measures are mainly conveyed through
energy management.

The Group adopts both administrative practices and
equipment installation for energy conservation over the
years, for example, requesting staff to turn off the air
conditioning and lighting during lunch time and non-
office hours; activating the energy saving mode of office
equipment; maintaining air indoor temperature at a
moderate level; and placing energy saving reminders at
the prominent location. The office situated in Tsim Sha
Tsui continued adopting LED lights, which compared on
the energy efficiency with conventional light bulbs in the
past office, a daily saving of 11.62 kWh was achieved.

Other than that, the Group mainly produced general
office wastewater and our operations do not consume
a significant amount of water. Notwithstanding the fact,
the Group is aware of the scarcity of water resources
and the importance of environmental education. The
Group, therefore, reduces the use of water by placing
reminder at the toilet and pantry to remind employees
to save water.
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d)

Consumption Intensity per
shipment unit
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Environment and the Natural Resources

To protect the environment and enhance the utilization
rate of natural resources, the Group has incorporated
the elements of environmental protection and sustainable
development in its operations. Through supply chain
management, the Group encourages suppliers to
cooperate, jointly promote and adopt good environmental
management measures, as well as to assess suppliers’
operations for continuous monitoring and improvement
of environmental performance.

The Group is also actively implementing green office
management, for example, the use of Enterprise
Resources Planning (ERP) management system to
promote the use of electronic files and forms. The
Group fully adopts the use of Forest Stewardship
Council certified paper (“FSC paper”) in daily operation
when necessary, This reflects the Group’s operation
is fully supporting the environmental protection in the

perspective of office paper consumption.

In addition, the Group organises employee training to
promote environmental policies in order to enhance
their environmental awareness and strengthen their
competence in policy implementation. In this year, the
number of employees participated in the environmental
related training is 43 (including those newly recruited
employees), and the associated training totally amounted
to 43 hours in the whole year.

During the reporting period, the Group did not identify any
violation or complaint against the relevant environmental

regulations.
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REFERENCE TO STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING GUIDE

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

A1

A1.1
A1.2
A13
Al4
A1.5
A1.6

A2

A2.1
A2.2
A2.3
A2.4

A2.5

A3
A3.1

B.1

B1.1
B1.2
B.2

B2.1
B2.2
B2.3

B.3
B3.1
B3.2

B4
B4.1

B4.2
B.5

B5.1
B5.2

Emissions

Types of emissions and respective emissions data
Greenhouse gas emissions in total and intensity
Total hazardous waste produced and intensity
Total non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

10a. Control of Emission
10a. Control of Emission

10a
10b
10b

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved 10a

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, reduction ~ 10b.
initiatives and results achieved

Use of Resources 10c.
Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity 10c.
Water consumption in total and intensity 10c.
Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved 10c.

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, ~ 10c.
water efficiency initiatives and results achieved
Total packaging material used for finished products and with reference to per unit  10b.

produced

Environment and Natural Resources
Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural ~ 10d.
resources and the actions taken to manage them

Employment 5. Employment

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and geographical region 5. Employment

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region 5. Employment

Health and Safety 6. Health and Safety

Number and rate of work-related fatalities 6. Health and Safety

Lost days due to work injury 6. Health and Safety

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are 6. Health and Safety

implemented and monitored

Development and Training 7. Employee Training and Development
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category 7. Employee Training and Development
The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee 7. Employee Training and Development
category

Labour Standards

forced labour

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered

Supply Chain Management

Number of suppliers by geographical region

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where

10d.

. Control of Emission
. Waste Disposal
. Waste Disposal
. Control of Emission
Waste Disposal

Energy and Water Saving
Energy and Water Saving
Energy and Water Saving
Energy and Water Saving
Energy and Water Saving

Waste Disposal

5. Employment
Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and 5. Employment

o 0o 0o Ol

the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored
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. Employment

. Supply Chain Management
. Supply Chain Management
. Supply Chain Management

Environment and Natural Resources
Environment and Natural Resources
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPls

Section in This Report

B.6
B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4
B6.5

B.7

Product Responsibility

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property
rights

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored

Anti-corruption

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

Community Investment

Focus areas of contribution

Resources contributed to the focus area

9. Product Responsibility
9. Product Responsibility

9. Product Responsibility
9. Product Responsibility

9. Product Responsibility
9. Product Responsibility

4. Corporate Governance
4. Corporate Governance
4. Corporate Governance
3. Community Service

3. Community Service
3. Community Service
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and senior management of the Group strive to maintain
a high standard of corporate governance, to formulate sound
corporate governance practice for improvement of accountability
and transparency in operations, and to strengthen the internal
control system from time to time so as to ensure Shareholders’
expectations are met.

Compliance with Corporate Governance Code

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
applied the principles and complied with the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
except for the below deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Pang Siu Hin, is both the
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. In view
of the fact that Mr. Pang is one of the co-founders of the Group
and has been operating and managing the Group effectively since
1996, the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group
to have Mr. Pang taking up both roles for effective management and
business development with his profound knowledge and experience
in the industry. The Board therefore considers that the deviation
from the CG Code provision A.2.1 is reasonably justified under
such circumstances.

Code Provision F.1.1

Under the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
engages Ms. Kho Polien (“Ms. Kho”) as Company Secretary during
the Period. Ms. Kho is an associate member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators respectively and in performing her
duties as the company secretary of the Company, she reports to
the Board and maintains contact with the chief executive officer
of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries
with all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have complied
with the standards required by the Model Code during the Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Accountability

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and reports to them
at general meetings. All Directors are required to pursue excellence
in the interests of the Shareholders and fulfill his/her fiduciary duties
by applying the required level of skills, care and diligence to a
standard in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Composition of the Board

The Board currently comprises a total of seven Directors including
two executive Directors, two non-executive Directors, and three
independent non-executive Directors. The Board members for the
Period and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Managing Director
Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit

Mr. Lee Luk Shiu

Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Mr. Pang Siu Hin, the Chairman, is the spouse of Ms. Kwan Lai
Man. Save as disclosed, there is no other relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship),
among the Directors.
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Independence

We have strong elements of independence on the Board, providing
independent and objective opinions on strategic issues and
performance matters as well as extensive expertise, experience and
insight of each Director to the integration of the Board. The Board
follows the requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine
on the independence of Directors. The Board determines that the
Directors do not have any direct or indirect material relationship
with the Group. Furthermore, the Company has received an annual
confirmation from each of its independent non-executive Directors
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

During the Period, the Company at all times met the requirements
of Rules 3.10(1) and (2), and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board and it exceeds the
parameters of the CG Code.

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company recognizes the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that increasing the Board diversity will
enhance the quality of its performance by supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against appropriate criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Nomination
Committee reviews this Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and recommends any revisions, if required, to the
Board for consideration and approval.
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The diversity of the Board is summarized in the following charts: ~ EE &8 % T/t E R T B # i

Designation Gender

5 ezl

Executive Directors 28.57%

43% o
’ 28.5%  HITEE iy
Bt
7 Non-executive Female
Directors
P pegis
FHITES
M Independent .
28.5% Non-executive Directors 71.43%
B EMITES
Age Group Directorship with other Listed Companies
Fi#A R (Number of Companies)
28.57% RiHEEM LT AR ZES(AREE)
o, M 40-49 years old
28.57% 28.57%
40-495% 0
28.57%
71 50-59 years old 13
50-595% 1234
60 yea\rs\ old or above miaeaeee
42.86% BOBREM £ ARAZIA £
42.86%
Length of Service in the Group
R 5 B iR 7% 5 58
28.57% 0-5
42.86% o years
0-5%
[ 5-10 years
5-10%F
M 10 years or above
10F kb
28.57% PR
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Board Meetings

During the Period, the Company held 4 regular board meetings,
an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) on 3 September 2018, 2 Audit
Committee meetings on 25 June 2018 and 22 November 2018,
respectively, 1 Remuneration Committee meeting on 25 June 2018
and 1 Nomination Committee meeting on 25 June 2018. Details
of each Director’s attendance in the aforesaid meetings are set
out below:
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Board Committee Committee  Committee
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Executive Directors HITES
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Non-executive Directors FBTES

Ms. Wong Wai Ling BEERUT 44 NATER NARNER  NATER 11
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping REFLE 4/4 N/AT i A N/AZ i A N/AT i 1/1

Independent non-executive BIYFHTEE

Directors
Mr. Lau Chi Kit AEBEE 4/4
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu FRNKEE 4/4
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HEHEET 4/4

The Board and the Management

The Board is responsible for the overall conduct of the Group,
formulating Group policies and business directions, and monitoring
risk management, internal controls and performance of the
management. The Board delegates and gives clear directions to
the Management as to their powers and circumstances in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior the Board approval.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
company matters, including the approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those that
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a
view to ensuring that board procedures and all applicable laws and
regulations are followed. Each Director is able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expense upon making request to the Board.

Executive Directors delegate some day-to-day management,
administration and operation to the senior management. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to significant transactions
entered into by the aforesaid officers. The Board also has the full
support of the executive Directors and the senior management for
the discharge of its responsibilities.

Management for the purpose of this corporate governance
report includes the executive Directors, senior management and
departmental heads. They are responsible for the day-to-day
operations, management and administration of the Group under
the leadership of the executive Directors. They also execute and
implement strategies and directions determined by the Board.

Members of our management are frequently invited to attend the
Board meetings to report and engage in discussions with the Board
in respect of strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates to ensure that the Board has a general understanding
of the Group’s business and to enable them to make informed
decisions for the benefit of the Group. They are required to answer
any questions or challenges posed by the Board.

In addition to regular Board meetings, monthly management
meetings were held to review, discuss and make decisions on
financial and operational matters.
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Board Meetings and Board Procedural Matters

The Board meets regularly and has formal procedures to include
matters to be referred to it for consideration and decisions at the
Board meetings. The formal notice and agenda of meetings are
usually sent to all Directors at least 14 days before each meeting
and they are consulted and given an opportunity to comment on
the agenda.

Meeting materials are usually sent to Directors in advance of each
meeting to ensure that the Directors have full and timely access to
relevant information. With a view to becoming more environment-
friendly by reducing paper consumption, meeting materials are
distributed in electronic form and Directors are encouraged to read
the electronic version.

Draft minutes recording substantive matters discussed and
decisions resolved at the meetings are circulated to all Directors
for their comments (if any) within a reasonable time (generally within
seven business days) of each meeting. The final version of the
minutes is approved at the subsequent meeting and a copy is
sent to the Directors for their records. The final executed version
is placed on record and made available for inspection.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular Board
meetings a year. During the Period, four regular Board meetings
were convened and performed the following work:

1. reviewed and approved the 2017/18 annual report of the
Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

2. reviewed and approved the 2018/19 interim report of the
Company and its related results announcements and
documents;

3. reviewed the operational and financial reports of the Group;

4. discussed and considered recommendations made by the
board committees;
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5. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s affairs,
including strategic plans, financial affairs, progress and
updates of business performance, and budget summary/
proposals; and

6. reviewed the effectiveness of corporate governance practices,
internal control and risk management.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the Period, the Board as a whole is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties including:

1)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

2)  toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and the senior management;

3) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
in compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements;

4)  to develop, review and monitor the CG Code and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

5)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Professional
Development

All Directors have kept abreast of their responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company. Directors are continuously updated with the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance with and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

Directors are encouraged to participate in professional development
courses and seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has devised a training record to assist the
Directors in maintaining their training record.
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The below chart summarises the participation of Directors in training I~ % # it & £ 0 [ B8 8 F& A 2 10 35 3
and continuous professional development during the Period under KRB ZXER BN °
review.

Types of Continuous Professional Development
FESXRRER
Reading Material regarding
regulatory update and

corporate governance Attending seminars/
matters conferences/forums
MEEBEEEN
Name of Directors EERS RECEEREEZMHE HENRE €8/ WE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Pang Siu Hin gOOTEE 4 4
Ms. Kwan Lai Man BEZL L v 4
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Wong Wai Ling BERL v v
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping RETEE v v
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Kit AERESE v v
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu EkEE 4 4
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny HEAREL 4 4
Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance EENSHABERR

The Company has been maintaining an adequate Directors’ and ARG ERREHNEEZT L KB B
officers’ (“D&Q0”) Liability Insurance, which gives appropriate cover ([EZEEk KB EDEETRE - RE R
for any legal action brought against the Directors and officers since A A EMAREMHHE S k| KB
the Company went listed. To ensure sufficient and appropriate B REKMZEZRZTHRBEBEERE - B
insurance cover is in place, we review the Company’s D&0 MHRREHAZZTREBEBE N RE - &M
insurance policy annually based on recent trends in the insurance & & R 1R b ™ 35 89 37 HA 8 2 &2 H b 48
market and other relevant factors. The Insurance Policy is available B E X BHRFBFHAQATANEEZT R &
for inspection by the Directors upon request. During the Period,no R ER B - REAJEESF ERK T MU
claim has been made since the Insurance Policy came into effect. & o R AN HIfE - B (R B & &0 1& I /& &
EEMERE-

BT RJUAR AR A AR A (O BR) B B A R A ED 69
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Deed of Non-Competition

In order to protect the Group’s interests, the deed of non-competition
dated 25 September 2014 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) was
executed by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company.
Pursuant to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition, Mr. Pang,
Mrs. Pang and the Controlling Shareholders have jointly and
severally undertaken that they would not engage in any business
or manufacturing any products which are in competition with those
of the Group. The Company’s independent non-executive Directors
will review, at least on annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition by the Controlling Shareholders and their
respective close associates on their existing or future competing
business.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors are required to comply with their common law duty
to act in the best interests of the Company and Shareholders as
a whole. Any perceived, potential or actual conflicts of interest
between the Group and its Directors are to be avoided. The
Directors are requested to disclose their interests, if any, in any
transaction, arrangement or other proposal to be considered by the
Board at Board meetings, and abstain from voting if any conflicts
of interest arise or where they become aware of any perceived or
potential conflicts of interest. All declared interests are properly
recorded and made accessible by the Board members. Directors
have a continuing duty to inform the Board of any changes to these
conflicts.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Pang serves as the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company. The reasons have been explained in the section
headed “Compliance with Corporate Governance Code” of this
annual report.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(INCLUDING INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS)

Non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) (including independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”)) make a positive contribution to the
development of the Group’s strategy and policies and scrutinise
the Group’s performance through informed insight and independent
judgement. They constructively challenge the management, which is
vital to fulfill the objectives set out by the Board. In order to preserve
well-balanced governance, the Board has ensured that all members
of the Audit Committee are INEDs, majority of the members of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committees are INEDs, and that
each committee is chaired by an INED.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All our NEDs (including INEDs) are appointed for a term of one year
and are required to offer themselves for re-election at the first AGM
following their appointments. Under the Articles of Association of
the Company, at least one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at the AGM at least once every three years.
Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM at which
he or she retires. We confirm that all Directors’ appointments and
re-elections were conducted in compliance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the CG Code for the period under
review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance and to enhance
the function of the Board, the Board has established the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company’s affairs
under its defined scope of duties and terms of reference. The terms
of reference of each of the Board Committees are available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Details of the
Board Committees are discussed below.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee pursuant to
a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to review and monitor the Group’s relationship with
the external auditors and the auditors’ independence; monitor the
integrity of the Group’s financial information and review significant
reporting judgments contained in it; oversee the Group’s financial
reporting and review the effectiveness of internal controls and risk
management procedures; and consider major investigation findings
on internal control matters and management’s response to these
findings.

As at 31 March 2019, the Audit Committee consisted of three
members who are the INEDs, namely Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk
Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Lee Luk Shiu.

During the Period, the Audit Committee convened two meetings
and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2017/18 annual report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed the 2018/19 interim report of the Company and its
related preliminary results announcements;

3. reviewed and recommended the re-appointment of the external
auditors, taking into account its independence;

4.  approved terms of engagement including the remuneration of
the external auditors and audit service plan;

5. assessed and evaluated the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management procedures and internal control systems; and

6. reviewed and discussed the internal control review projects
conducted by the Internal Audit function, including:

i. internal audit function and progress;

i. significant internal audit findings and follow-up
remediation status;
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ii.  annual internal audit planning memorandum; and

iv. major investigation findings on internal controls and
management’s response to those findings.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
Under its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee is
required, among other things, to review and determine the terms
of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the executive Directors and senior management, and
make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of NEDs
(including INEDs).

The Remuneration Committee has also taken into account a number
of relevant factors such as remuneration packages offered by
companies of comparable business and scale, market practices,
and the financial and non-financial performance of the Group to
ensure that the remuneration packages offered remain appropriate
and competitive.

The Remuneration Committee ensures that no individual Director or
senior management approves his or her own remuneration.

Particulars of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements and the analysis of the five highest
paid employees are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 March 2019, the Remuneration Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three INEDs), namely
Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang
Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Lau Chi Kit.
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During the Period, the Remuneration Committee convened 1
meeting and performed the following work:

1.  reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives;

2. reviewed the remuneration of the executive Directors and
senior management; and

3.  make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of
NEDs and INEDs.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 5 November 2010 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. Under
its term of reference, the Nomination Committee is, among other
things, to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and the management of the Board
succession; to make recommendations to the Board for potential
Board members; to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board; and to assess the independence of INEDs.

As at 31 March 2019, the Nomination Committee consisted of
four members (one executive Director and three independent non-
executive Directors), namely Ms. Kwan Lai Man, Mr. Lau Chi Kit,
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny. The chairman of
the Nomination Committee is Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee convened 1 meeting
and performed the following work:

1.  reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,;
2. assessed the independence of INEDs;

3.  nominated suitable and qualified individual for directorship;
and

4.  made recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for the
Directors.
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Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
which sets out the principles on guiding the Nomination Committee
to identify and evaluate a candidate for nomination to (i) the Board
for appointment, or to (ii) shareholders of the Company for election.
The Nomination Policy could assist the Company to achieve board
diversity in the Company and enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and its corporate governance standard.

The Nomination Policy sets out the criteria in evaluation, selection
and recommendation of any candidate for directorship of the
Company, including but not limited to, diversity in aspects under
the Board Diversity Policy, commitment for responsibilities of the
Board, qualifications, reputation for integrity, potential contributions
to the Board, and plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of
the Board, and in case of the nomination of independence non-
executive Directors, meeting the independence requirements with
reference to the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

In addition, the nomination procedures with regard to the new
appointment, election or re-election of a Director are set out in
the Nomination Policy. The Nomination Committee may propose
to the Board a candidate recommended or offered for nomination
by a shareholder of the Company as a nominee for election to the
Board and the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors is subject to the approval of the
Board. The Nomination Committee may make the recommendation
by submitting a proposal containing the nominating intention, the
candidate’s consent to be nominated and the candidate’s personal
profile and other relevant information to the Board for consideration.

Each proposed new appointment, election or re-election of a
Director shall be assessed and/or considered against the criteria
and qualifications set out in the Nomination Policy by the Nomination
Committee which shall recommend its views to the Board and/or
the Shareholders for consideration and determination.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of the

Nomination Policy and from time to time review the Nomination
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’
REMUNERATION

The Company’s independent external auditors is HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited. The roles and responsibilities of our external
auditors are stated in the Independent Auditors’ Report.

BYZBEH<

ARAZBIIEZEEMRBEEH S
=B PAR R GF A IR = D
MBELREEHIRN B XA RS -

2019 2018

Fee paid/ Fee paid/

payable payable

B/ ENER B ENEH

Nature of services REME HK$’000 HK$’000

FE T FAET

Audit services EZ R 900 850

Non-audit services IE | R

— Review services - E B R %E 170 150

— Other services - H fth B 7% 30 190

Total &=t 1,100 1,190
Directors’ Accountability and Auditing EEBMERZE

The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2019 to reflect a true and fair view of the Group’s financial
position as at 31 March 2019 and of its results and cash flows for
the Period.

In preparing of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2019, the generally accepted accounting principles
in Hong Kong, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
Hong Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent
use of appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates. The consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 were prepared on
a going concern basis.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report in this annual report.

76 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

EEHAABEREAEEH £2019F
SABTHLEFEMGZRAUBHRE UE
ERAFREAEBERKR219F3H31H
MV BRAARERBANEERR &

=3
L °

mE B E2019F3A318 It FE W&
EHBREF ERABFTE—KRAR
METER FEVERSEENRSE
B ER TERERABENTA
BE UEEEERENHE KRG
HE2019F3A31MBIEFEFENRAY
BHRERDBEFERLELERR -

AEEREZBLZBREHI X
ARBEARGAYBERRINBS
EZEH-

il

Annual Report 2018/2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged Ms. Kho as Company Secretary and she
maintains contact with Mr. Pang, the executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company.

Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the effective conduct
of meetings and that proper procedures are followed (including
organising meetings, preparing agendas and the written resolutions
or minutes, collating and distributing meeting materials, and keeping
records of substantive matters discussed and decisions resolved
at the meetings). She also advises the Board on compliance and
corporate governance matters (including updating the Board on
any legal and regulatory changes and facilitating the induction and
professional development of the Directors).

The Board has access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary at all times. Ms. Kho has confirmed that she has attended
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Period.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
an extraordinary general meeting can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital
of the Company having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Such
meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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There are no provisions in the Articles of Association of the Company
or the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands for Shareholders
to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who
wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election
as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, no person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
shall have been lodged at the head office of the Company in Hong
Kong or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting and
the minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least 7 days. The procedures for
the shareholders of the Company to propose a person for election
as a Director are also posted on the website of the Company.

Procedures for Raising Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns together with
their names and contact information to the Board by addressing
them to the head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1213-1215, 12/F,
Seapower Tower, Concordia Plaza, No. 1 Science Museum
Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by e-mail
to contact@hinsanggroup.com for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Constitutional Documents

During the Period, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The updated version
of Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company believes that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
enables Shareholders and investors to make appropriate investment
decisions.

The members of the Board, the Board committees and the external
auditors will be present to answer Shareholders’ questions in
the annual general meetings of the Company. Circulars will be
distributed to all Shareholders before the annual general meeting
and any extraordinary general meetings in accordance with the
timeline requirement as laid down in the Listing Rules and the
Articles of Association of the Company. All the resolutions proposed
to be approved at the general meetings will be taken by poll and
poll voting results will be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company after the relevant general meetings.

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Group
maintains a website where information on the Company’s
announcements, financial information and other information are
posted. Shareholders and investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong with any
enquires.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”)
which sets out the guidelines for the Board on determining any
declaration of dividends and the level of the dividend to be paid to
the shareholders of the Company, which allow shareholders of the
Company to participate in the profits of the Group whilst retaining
adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. The Board shall
consider the following factors before declaring or recommending
dividends:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;
2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future plans;

4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; and

6. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no

assurance that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Goals and Objectives

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an ongoing
basis. The Board acknowledged that the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

Main Features of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board places great importance on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and has ultimate responsibilities for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and
ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems. The Board
is also responsible for overseeing in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board is committed to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems at least annually.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources,
the qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Audit Committee
oversees the systems of risk management and internal control of
the Group and continuously communicates any significant matters
to the Board.
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Risk Management Framework

The Group’s risk management framework comprises the following
phases:

o Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives;

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio according to such analysis; and

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and ongoing monitor the residual
risks.

Such framework provides a systematic approach to risk management
process, which is embedded in the system of internal controls as
an integral part of corporate governance. The risk management
framework helps sustain business success, creates value for
stakeholders and supports the Board in discharging its corporate
governance responsibilities by proactively identifying, addressing
and managing key risks within the Group. The Risk Management
framework is aligned with the Committee of the Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) Internal Control
- Integrated Framework. The components of the framework are as
follows:

° Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for internal control across
the Group;

° Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s objectives, forming
a basis for determining how risks should be managed;

° Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out;
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° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls; and

° Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is in place and
functions.

The management takes direct risk management responsibilities as
risk owners.

Risk Assessment

During the Period, management of the Company: 1) conducted risk
assessment to identify, filter and prioritize the key risks faced by the
Group; 2) established a risk register to document the Group’s key
risks and their respective risk levels; and 3) identified the mitigating
measures for the identified key risks, and the person-in-charge to
monitor and follow up the implementation progress of the mitigating
measures.

Moreover, there are top eight priority risks which have been identified
under four categories: 1) business and strategic risk; 2) operational
risk; 3) regulatory compliance risk; and 4) financial & reporting risk.

Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) is an independent and
objective body, which performs the Group’s internal audit function
and directly reports to the Audit Committee and the Board at least
annually. The manager of IAD has a direct access to the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and the Board.

The IAD has an unlimited access to reviewing the Group’s activities,
internal control, risk management, and corporate governance related
issues. One of the functions is to assist the Board in independently
assessing the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control
systems, risk management process, and more importantly seeking
continuous improvement.
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To align with the Group’s growth and latest business developments,
the IAD will always review its adequacy and competency of
knowledge and attend corresponding workshops and/or seminars
whenever thinks fit.

Internal Audit Activities

The IAD has adopted a risk-management based approach in
developing the annual internal audit planning memorandum, which
corresponds to the risk management framework. Risk assessment,
which is regarded as a major and dynamic process, is performed
on a regular basis so as to identify, prioritize and scope business
activities and simultaneously cover business activities with significant
risks across the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and approves
the annual internal audit planning memorandum. In each individual
audit assignment, significant risk areas such as finance, operation,
compliance and fraud risk would further be assessed in order to
evaluate internal control effectiveness and the mitigation efforts
made by the management.

All audit findings and corresponding recommendations on control
deficiencies of each audit assignment would be well communicated
to the management, who needs to initiate any remedial actions to
correct those control deficiencies within a reasonable period of time.
Subsequent reviews are purposefully done to monitor whether those
remedial actions have been performed right on time and correctly.
Significant deficiencies of individual assignment are reported to and
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Through the ongoing reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of
the management’s awareness of some key operational processes,
the IAD discharges its duties of performing audit assignment on
those areas on an ad hoc basis if necessary.

REGAEENEEBRENEBNE
B NEDERKEEZSEASN T
MEEH THEBEERFELZ2MEED
Hwmegk /A E -

ab T %A B
NEFCRMAARER BERF K
BRARRERRE  ABEFERH

ERiEARA BRI EHRAEE
NREARNREF  BEHATARA - BE
FRhRREEXBEZSH RAKEBEEAEE
FPEEARBNEBEH BFXRZEZE
SEMEEFERNBEZTEANM-
Eﬂﬂ%@EH$AE—i¥ﬁEK
eIy % - &E - Qﬁ&%%ﬂ
&ﬁ HMmTZABEIERIRE
[ FfT £% EX &) 4% % 15 16 ©

EERBEEMSEHERAAREETR
WITEEZRAEAERRBREZR 5
HEBEFMATHR LHEEEH G
HEFTE BRREEKEAREZEA
HEETNTE BEBFZIEGH L
NEBZEREREEE RE
@B EZIE R MEKRT
EgERABEEHN-

BT
IF ¥ #b 3 17
RTeMmMBEZXE

LT—rZ BMHEEEHE THARERH
i ME%&E’JZ-E“'IE&E‘%Z'I‘E' A 2 7B
EZ\E%TEnnﬁqhz,ﬁﬁ%%%iﬁ}i%ﬁ%
REBHBE -

84 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2018/2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Review of Risk Management and Internal
Control Effectiveness

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control
system to safeguard shareholder investments and Company’s
assets and with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewing
the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The Audit
Committee oversees the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group and continuously communicates any significant
matters to the Board. The IAD has submitted its internal control
review reports for the Group to the Audit Committee and the Board
in November 2017. Findings and recommendations concerning
improvements to the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board considered that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems were
effective and adequate during the Period under review.

The Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience and training programs of
the Group’s IAD and accounting and financial reporting staff
and considered that staffing is adequate. All staff has sufficient
competence to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

Findings and recommendations concerning improvements to
the Group’s internal controls have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board considered the Group’s risk
management system and internal control system of the Group,
including the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the accounting, internal audit, and financial reporting
function, and their training programs and budget, are effective
and adequate, and have complied with provisions of the CG Code
during the Period.
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The Board is pleased to present to the Shareholders their annual
report together with the audited financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the marketing, selling and
manufacturing of healthcare products primarily targeting at children,
among which “Hin Sang (§T4) ” has been a long established
reputable brand. To align with the consumer’s trend, the Group
continues to expand the e-commerce business through electronic
platforms. To leverage on existing resources to increase profit,
the Group also trades in skin care, personal care and slimming
products of reputable brands. It is also developing its business
in mother infant Chinese medical healthcare as well as diagnosis
and treatment services projects. Details of principal activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. There has been no significant
change in the principal business of the Group during the Period.
The segment information of the operations of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019 is set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 including a fair review of the business and discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business, and the
environmental policies and performance of the Group are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report”, “Five Years Financial
Summary”, and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
sections of this Annual Report. These discussions form part of this
Report of the Directors. The Group complies with the requirements
under the Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) for the disclosure of information
and corporate governance.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING AND

PLACING

The shares of the Company became listed on the Stock Exchange
on 16 October 2014. The offer price was HK$1.18 per share
and 200,000,000 Shares were allotted. The net proceeds from
the Listing was approximately HK$217.3 million after deducting
underwriting fees and related expenses.

As at 31 March 2019, the net proceeds from the Listing were
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(X Em - BEBAER1IISELR
2 B2 8 200,000,000 % % 2 o £ T B FR
BREBEBFEHE2A7I3BE B T(EM
REeHBERRHEBRI) -

R2019F3A31H  FMATBRIBFZ

utilized as follows: RamT:
Balance of
the Proceeds
as at
19 February Proceeds
2016 used Balance
FrEREL R
R 2016 F 2 A
2A198 Fr & X iR
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEETT BEET
Exploring business collaboration = SKEE ¥ RIEEE A Z
opportunities with new brand EHAaEHRe
proprietors 2.0 2.0 -
Expanding the sales and BREE RS HALE
distribution network 24.1 24.1 -
Expanding the product portfolio  #& K & 42 & 1.3 1.3 =
Expanding the manufacturing BAASBENRBEEL
arm of the Group and exploring KR REITE S K
opportunities in health industry e 41.5 41.5 -
Acquiring commercial property in  FA % & W B B 2 4 2
Hong Kong to use as LWRERAEEB &
Group’s own Office =R 80 80 -
General working capital —REEES 8.7 8.7 -
157.6 157.6 -
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM

SUBSCRIPTION

The company completed a subscription of new shares in June 2016
and the net proceeds of the subscription were used to invest in a
joint venture company (established with Fullshare in July 2016). The
following table discloses proceeds from the Subscription and the
Shareholder’s Loan injected or to be injected into the joint venture
company during the year ended 31 March 2019:

Y.\‘;’F&

WEEENMERER

ANRAFIBER2016F 6 AT REIF KM
ERBEENMSREFTERARKEE
RELDR(R2016F7AEEBEMKT) »
TREIREE2019F3A318 It F
ERBEENASRED EAXFE
AZEELRANBREERESE :

Remaining Injected Remaining

to be for the to be

Capital injected as at year ended injected as at

Structure 31 March2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2019

R2018%F  REZ2019F #2019

3A31A 3A31A 3A31H

Source of Fund (HK$'000) EeRF(THER) EXER M E A LEEXEA M & A
Subscription of JV Shares by the Company K2 ] AEA 2 A 8l k{7

(51%) of HK$60,000,000 60,000,000 75 2 51% 30,600 - - -

Subscription of JV Shares by Fullshare LRRBaERARN

(49%) of HK$60,000,000 60,000,00075 7T Z 49% 29,400 - - -

Shareholder’s loan from the Company REARAINREER 69,400 52,400 (15,000) 37,400
Controlling Shareholder's loan from RENENERRRER

Genwealth 58,280 58,280 - 58,280

187,680 110,680 (15,000) 95,680
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During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company had granted

shareholder’s loan to the joint venture company in the amount of

HK$15 million while HK$37.4 million is expected to be granted in the

future depending on the timing and the funding needs. The total of

utilized funds amounted to HK$92 million and details is as follows:
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REE2019F3A31 B It FEHE &K
RAIBTEERAIZRRERSE A
5EEBT MARBABEERTEE
RAEITAEBE LT RTREREZED
AMESTE-EYHHRELETERA
BET HBHT:

Remaining Injected forthe  Used for the Remaining
Injected as at Used as at as at year ended year ended as at
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2018 31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
REZ20198 REZ20198 REZ20198
Use of Proceeds by the Joint S & ARMMEHE R2018 % R2018 5 H2018 5 3A31H 3R31A 3A3A
Venture Company (HK$000)  E#(T#7) SANARA  SAMNAMAE SANAHE  LEERA  LEEFRR LEEHE
Acquisition of pharmaceutical WERER
factory = = = = = =
Development of medical centres  ZEHEHEBER LR/
and/or hospital n the PRC 285 63,000 (31,494) 31,508 15,000 (16,549 29,963
Development of medical centres ~ ZEEANEER L/
and/or hospital in Hong Kong FER 10,000 (7,409) 2,591 - 2,526) 65
Development of medical centres  ZEHMAMEERLE/
and/or hospital in Singapore HER - - - - - -
General working capitals -REEL: 4,000 (1,779) 2,21 = (2,221) =
Total @ 77,000 (40,682) 36,318 15,000 (21,290) 30,028

OPERATING RESULTS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 118 of this annual report. The
details of the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
Period are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 122 and note 42 to the consolidated financial statements

respectively.
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DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Details of the movement in the investment property of the Group
are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitliement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
AGM of the Company, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 11 September 2019 to Monday,
16 September 2019, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares of the Company will be registered. In order to
be eligible to attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 10 September 2019.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on 16 September 2019 and
the notice of AGM will be published and dispatched to Shareholders
of the Company in due course.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 260 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Period are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes”
in this report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2019
are set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF
THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders
as at 31 March 2019 were approximately HK$697.5 million. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, subject to the provisions
of memorandum of association of the Company or the articles of
association (the “Articles of Association”), the Company’s share
premium account may be applied to pay distributions or dividends
to shareholders provided that immediately following the date of
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group’s total charitable donations for the Period amounted to
approximately HK$1.5 million.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The followings are the percentage of sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers of the Group for the Period:

Sales

— the largest customer 20.9%
— the five largest customers 45.7%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 40.6%
— the five largest suppliers 54.7%

During the Period, none of the Directors, or any of the associates
or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, hold
over 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, had any
beneficial interest in the major customers or suppliers of the Group
noted above.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Period were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Siu Hin (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wai Ling
Mr. Yuen Chi Ping

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Kit
Mr. Lee Luk Shiu
Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny

Pursuant to Article 108(a) and (b) of the Articles of Association, at
each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.
A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to
retire by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to obtain the
number required) any Director who wishes to retire and not to offer
himself for re-election. In addition, code provision A.4.2 of the
CG Code also stipulates that each Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first general meeting of the Company after his appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting.

Mr. Yuen Chi Ping, Mr. Lee Luk Shiu and Dr. Tang Sing Hing, Kenny
will be retired at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, will be
available for re-election as Directors.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from the three independent non-executive Directors pursuant with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers them are independent.

BIOGRAPHIES DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out on pages 26 to 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors has
entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each service
contract is for an initial term of three years and shall continue
thereafter unless and until it is terminated by the Company or the
Director giving to the other not less than three months’ prior notice
in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company under which each of them
is appointed for a period of one year. None of the Directors has or
is proposed to have any service agreement with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries (other than contracts expiring or determinable
by the employer within one year without payment of compensation
other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which had
been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions of which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be entered
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or which were required to be disclosed, under the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules were as follows:

(a) Long position in Shares
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MR2019F3A31H EERARFEE
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Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Director Capacity Shares held (Note 3)
BRER
R BoW
EEns g 5 RGEE (PR 5£3)
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 8,385,000 0.77%
ZLITRE EanEE A
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,223,000 0.48%
Be 18 4 &= (P 35 1)
Interest of a controlled corporation 554,242,000 50.67%
and family interest (Note 2)
RrtlrERa kR kER(ME2)
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 5,223,000 0.48%
HEEXL L EaEE A
Interest of spouse (Note 1) 8,385,000 0.77%
Bie 18 4 == (P 75 1)
Interest of a controlled corporation 554,242,000 50.67%

and family interest (Note 2)
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Note 1: Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple. M1 22T EERBBEER T % iz
Each of Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore B-AW ZILPOTEERBER
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by each REIHWBRRE L FHHER
other. Mefn R A % o

Note 2: Genwealth is beneficially owned as to 90% by Mr. Pang Siu MzE2: 72 9 Bl H ?3*9‘ MEERBE
Hin and 10% by Ms. Kwan Lai Man. Accordingly, Mr. Pang Siu T+ K&K B0%K10%1E
Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are deemed to be interested in the @eo A REEHFLHEK
554,242,000 Shares held by Genwealth under the SFO. Pl-Z2ITRERNBEBELLH

BRI E A 554,242,000
RAR D P B ER -
Note 3: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as MsE3: ZA DL Y EMR2019F3A31H
at 31 March 2019 (i.e. 1,093,796,000 shares). K B B 17 % 15 (BP1,093,796,000
MRk ) st & o
(b) Long position in the underlying shares of (b) RAEADEHBERMDH W
the Company e
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
Interest of
Number of spouse
Name of Director Capacity options held (Note 2)
iR
BB N
i %5 Bt

Espns g 5 BREZHEA (B 7% 2)

Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 8,125,000 0.74

TR E EmlEB A

Interest of spouse (Note 1) 5,885,000 0.54
Bic 18 4 & (P 55 1)
14,010,000 1.28

Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 5,885,000 0.54

MEZEX T ExEB A

Interest of spouse (Note 1) 8,125,000 0.74
Bic 45 # 2= (B 52 1)
14,010,000 1.28
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Note 1:  Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man are married couple.
Each of Mr. Pang Siu Hin and Ms. Kwan Lai Man is therefore
deemed to be interested in the underlying Shares held by each
other.

Note 2: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as

at 31 March 2019 (i.e. 1,093,796,000 shares).

Long Position in Genwealth, an Associated
Corporation of the Company
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Ml 2204 ABET L L2
B-A ZELUTEERBES
TR AERE S A
ez

Wako: ZBE 2TV ER2019F3831H

7B % 17 & 15 (B11,093,796,000

R ) & o
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hay

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Shares held shareholding
P& R SESE
EENR g 4% [ &g Qe BAL
Mr. Pang Siu Hin Beneficial owner 36,000 90%
ZLPTRE ExnBEAA
Ms. Kwan Lai Man Beneficial owner 4,000 10%
BMEETZ L EmEAA
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief executive B EX T TZEEII  BEFZE ST H AR

of the Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions therein that they shall be
deemed to have pursuant to such provisions of the SFO), or any
interests or short positions which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or any interests or short positions which have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF

THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2019, so far as it is known to the Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following persons, not being a
Director or chief executive of the Company, had, or were deemed
or taken to have an interest or short position in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or, which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange:

Long position in Shares

FERRRAQ2TN KRS
RHEERONEZER KR

M2019F3A31H HESHAQA X
BITHRAERM UTFTAT(LIFES
KARAETETHRAB)BR AR AR
MEEEBRNDFPHEBEXRIEXNE E#
ERBESFLBAEKRAIEXVEE2K3
DEIEXBERRNRAHEEER K
KB HEHBEREARAEARBES K
MEROEBKFEZ ST LMz ER
FABE FZEAHEMBEAERARAR
R TE BN ERIAE

R HABER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity Shares held interest (Note 2)
RN
i %5 Aot
R g 7 gl = (P 5E2)
Genwealth Beneficial owner 554,242,000 50.67%
= ExEAA
Viewforth Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.86%
Viewforth Limited ExnEA AP
Fullshare Holdings Limited Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.86%
ERERBRAT = E R (M)
Magnolia Wealth International Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.86%
Limited
Magnolia Wealth International % [ # 25 (K 3£ 1)
Limited
Ji Changqun Interest in a corporation (Note 1) 250,000,000 22.86%
=8 EE R (M)
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Note 1: The 250,000,000 Shares are held by Viewforth Limited, a Company

which is wholly owned by Fullshare Holdings Limited, which in turn is
owned as to 46.58% by Magnolia Wealth International Limited, which
in turn is wholly owned by Ji Changqun. Ji Changqun also directly
owns 4.75% of Fullshare Holdings Limited.

Note 2: This percentage was compiled based on the Shares in issue as at 31

March 2019 (i.e. 1,093,796,000 shares).

Save as disclosed above, so far as it is known to the Directors or
chief executives of the Company, there was no other person (other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had, or
were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or which were recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year
ended 31 March 2019 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates nor was the Company
and any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective associates to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 25 September
2014, namely the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option
Scheme under the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of
the Company.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

100

The purpose of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to recognize
the contribution of certain employees, executives or officers
of the Group made or will make to the growth of the Group
and/or the listing of Shares on the Stock Exchange. The Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period
from 25 September 2014 to 15 October 2014, after which no
further options will be granted. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one Share. The total number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 24,640,000 Shares, representing 3.1%
of total number of Shares in issue as at 30 September 2014.
The offer of a grant of share options shall be accepted when
the offer letter has been duly signed and a consideration of
HK$1 in total has been paid by the grantee.

The exercise price per option under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$0.826, being 30% discount of the offering
price per Share in the initial public offer on 16 October 2014.

During the Period, none options was forfeited and total 288,000
options was exercised. Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 September 2014.
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The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2019:
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TRBENEH 22019F3H31H
FTEEBRBEE R ARBERER

EHBEE 2 AR T B REN S

ERE
Exercise As at Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name price 1April  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 March
of participant Date of grant per share  Exercise period 2018 period period period 2019
sRERGH 2 R2018% R2019%
SEENERIANE RiiAH RE &Y 4818 BaRE  BARK  BrATE  3A3A
HKS$
B
Directors
gz
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2018-24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
SRR 25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2019-24/9/2024 2,720,000 - - - 2,720,000
5,440,000 - - - 5,440,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2018-24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
BEENT 25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2019-24/9/2024 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
3,200,000 - - - 3,200,000
Employees
&
Employees at aggregate  25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2018-24/9/2024 288,000 - - (288,000) -
EE(A L) 25/9/2014 0826 16/10/2019-24/9/2024 288,000 - - - 288,000
576,000 - - (288,000) 288,000
Total 9,216,000 - - (88,0000 8,928,000
@5t
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(2) Share Option Scheme

102

The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is
established to recognize and acknowledge the contributions
that Eligible Participants (as defined below) have made or may
make to the Group so as to motivate the Eligible Participants
to optimize their performance and efficiency for the benefit of
the Group, and attract, retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are, will or expected to be beneficial to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on 16 October 2014,
after which no further options will be issued. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one Share. The total
number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes shall not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000
Shares (10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of
the Shares), unless approved by the shareholders in general
meeting (the maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time). No
option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under
the Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant exceeding 1% in aggregate
of the Shares in issue as at the date of such grant. The offer
of a grant of share options shall be accepted when the offer
letter has been duly signed and a consideration of HK$1 in
total has been paid by the grantee. The exercise period of the
share options granted is determinable by the Directors and
ends on a date which is not later than ten years from the date
of the acceptance of the offer of share options.
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Eligible Participants include: (i) any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner
or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in
which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company (the “Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the
beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary
objects of which include any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The exercise price of options shares shall not be less than the
highest of: (i) the closing price of the Share as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant
of the relevant option, which must be a business day; (i) an
amount equivalent to the average closing price of the Share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Share on the date of grant.

During the Period, none options was granted, none options
was forfeited and none options was exercised. Details of the
Share Option Scheme has been disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 September 2014.
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3 ol
The following table discloses the movements in the Company’s T %k # ]| X B 2201963 H31H
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme during LtEFERBREREFERE 2K
the year ended 31 March 2019: NABRENES
Exercise As at Grant  Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name of price 1April  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 March
participant Date of grant per share  Exercise period 2018 period period period 2019
SRER R2018 & R2019F
SRENERALE  REAH %8 8% 4818 BaRd  BARK  HBRTE  3A3A
HKS$
BT
Directors
gz
Mr. Pang Siu Hin 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
ZOfEE 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2144 3110/2017-2/110/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3/10/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3/10/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
211212017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
2111212017 1412 21/12/2019-2012/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
2111212017 1412 21/12/2020-2012/2027 432,000 - - - 432,000
2,685,000 - - - 2,685,000
Ms. Kwan Lai Man 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 225,000 - - - 225,000
BERLT 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 300,000 - - - 300,000
3/10/2016 2144 3110/2017-2110/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3/10/2018-2/10/2026 324,000 - - - 324,000
3/10/2016 2144 3/10/2019-2/10/2026 432,000 - - - 432,000
211212017 1412 21/12/2018-20/12/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
211212017 1412 21/12/2019-2012/2027 324,000 - - - 324,000
2111212017 1412 21/12/2020-2012/2027 432,000 - - - 432,000
2,685,000 - - - 2,685,000
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G R CE e
Exercise As at Grant Forfeited  Exercised As at
Category or name of price 1April  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 March
participant Date of grant per share  Exercise period 2018 period period period 2019
SRk R20185 R2019E
SHEENENR NS RERH TEE GEH 4A1B BARE BRER  BATE SRR
HKS
B
Employees

3]
Employees at aggregate  28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 90,000 - - - 90,000
EE(AL) 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 120,000 - - - 120,000
18/11/2016 2.264  18/11/2017-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2.264  18/11/2018-17/11/2026 27,000 - - - 27,000
18/11/2016 2.264  18/11/2019-17/11/2026 36,000 - - - 36,000
300,000 - - - 300,000

Consultant

ER
Consultant 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2016-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
BEf 28/4/2015 146 28/4/2017-27/4/2025 180,000 - - - 180,000
28/4/2015 146 28/4/2018-27/4/2025 240,000 - - - 240,000
600,000 - - - 600,000
Total 6,270,000 - - - 6,270,000

toh

B2\
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT AND
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any Director or
Controlling Shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2019, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might
have with the Group.

REMUNERATION FOR DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code, the Company has established
the Remuneration Committee to formulate remuneration policies.
Directors’ remuneration are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration of
the Company’s Directors are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provides that the Directors, secretary
or other officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets and profit of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he
or she may incur or sustain or about the execution of their duties
in their respective offices. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect of
the relevant legal actions against the Directors.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float
under the Listing Rules since the date of the Listing to 31 March
2019.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Controlling Shareholders, including the company wholly owned
by each of them respectively, have confirmed to the Company of
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings provided
to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition disclosed in
the Corporate Governance Report. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that
all the undertakings under the deed of non-competition have been
complied with by the Controlling Shareholders and duly enforced
since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Please see the “Corporate Governance Report” set out on pages
61 to 85 of this annual report for details of its compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code.

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire as auditors of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and a resolution for its re-appointment will be proposed
at the said meeting. Save as disclosed above, there was no change
in auditors during the past three years.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the continuing connected
transactions of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules (including the significant related party transactions as
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements during

the Period).

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1. Sale of products under the Group brands to Brighten

Hong Limited
Date of Agreement

Parties

Term

Objective

Annual cap for the
year ended
31 March 2019

Actual consideration
for the year ended
31 March 2019

30 March 2017

Hin Sang Hong (HK) and Brighten
Hong Limited

Commenced from 1 April 2017 until
31 March 2020

Brighten Hong Limited sources
the Group products for sales and
distribution to anywhere in the
World save for Hong Kong, Macau,
Malaysia, Singapore and Taiwan

HK$9,900,000

HK$4,878,524

For details of the connected transactions, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March 2017.
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All the above continuing connected transactions did not exceed
the relevant annual cap amounts. The Directors, including the
independent non-executive Directors, have reviewed the continuing
connected transactions of the Company and confirmed that they
were:

entered into on normal commercial terms;

i. inthe ordinary and usual course of business and are fair and
reasonable to the Group; and

ii. the terms of the agreements are no less favourable to the
Group than terms offered by Independent Third Parties,
and therefore are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board has appointed
the auditors of the Company to carry out certain procedures on
the above continuing connected transactions in accordance
with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
above continuing connected transactions.

ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report is printed in English and Chinese and is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk under the
“Listed Company Information” and our Company’s website at
www.hinsanggroup.com. Printed copies in both languages are
posted to Shareholders.

By Order of the Board
Pang Siu Hin

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B8 37 A B e

31/F, Gloucester Tower &8
The Landmark IR
@ ﬁﬁ a3 EHNARASF 11 Pedder Street FITH115%
H LB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited Central BEES
Hong Kong EHETITKREIE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hin Sang
Group (International) Holding Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
118 to 259, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREXEER

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

B 5 FE W 5% 78 89 B8 AT 1E

Refer to note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

2GSV BHREIMT26-

As at 31 March 2019, the gross carrying amount of the
Group’s trade receivables amounted to approximately
HK$18,656,000 and allowance for credit losses
amounted to approximately HK$1,055,000.
M201963A31H EEENESFRKKEREA
#8 ¥ #718,656,000 % 7T I 5 & /&5 18 % 5 491,055,000
T o

We identified impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the use
of judgement and estimates by management in
determining the expected credit losses (“ECL”) for the
Group’s trade receivables.

EEHABE D EWE Emﬂ@%ﬁ%ﬁﬂ*ﬁ$
BEDBEREEEE EXEBEBEZRERENTE
Gf%%“ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁDﬁﬁiﬁﬂM&%ﬁ
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EE2ERNMABRBERERSER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

EEHREFRRFBERENENEFESHE:

o Obtaining an understanding of how
management assesses the ECL for trade
receivables;
BEANEREEBNMATEE S EKE
EEEE:

18 > 78 HA

° Testing the integrity of information used by
management to develop the provision matrix,
including aging analysis of trade receivables,
on a sample basis, by comparing individual
items in the analysis with the relevant sales
invoices and good delivery notes; and
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Key audit matter

BMEEXER

Management estimated the amount of lifetime ECL for
trade receivables based on provision matrix. Estimated
loss rates are based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted
for forward-looking information that is available without
cost or effect.
EREERBRERFREAAZESIRKRRNENTFES
EHEEEREe R -G BERXDERBEHK AR
HEHANZELBERENE URBEHEANHK
REBHIMAGER ZAEMEERETHE-

Valuation of inventories

FEHEE

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial

statements.
2HERE M BHREM T2 -

The inventories comprised of raw materials and
finished goods for resale amounting to approximately
HK$6,586,000 as at 31 March 2019.
R201963A31H  FE(BEERMHEEEEX M)
#) % 6,586,000/% T ©

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter due to the management’s judgment required in
estimating the allowance for inventories.
EERRAGTELRERBREFFTETANGEAT
ERBERFREFELEERBHE-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZERUNMNBREBRERSER

Assessing management’s basis and judgement
in determining credit loss allowance on
trade receivables, the reasonableness
of management’s grouping of the trade
receivables into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated
loss rates applied in each category in the
provision matrix (with reference to historical
default rates and forward-looking information).
FHEEEETESRRFEZEEER
BESNEERVEH EEEKESENR
REFEABEBERER TRBARNNEEM
MEBRGBEESBAMNERMGIBRR A
HEBERLENERMELER) -

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of
inventories included:

FERFERENERFEE:

Obtaining an understanding of how the
allowance for inventories is estimated by
management;

THREEBWMAMGFTFERE:
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EREREER EEZERUNMNBRBRERSER

Management assessed the recoverability of the amount e
based on an estimation of the net realisable value of the
inventories which involves the analyses of the status of
the subsequent sales and the current market price of
the inventories. If the actual net realisable values of the
inventories are less than expected as a result of change

in market condition, material allowances for inventories
may result.

ERERBMAAFEREZR FENEREN K
M FRAAESIREEREHERARENT

REEEREBS AAEERFEEENEE-

OTHER INFORMATION

Assessing the reasonableness and sufficiency
of allowance for inventories with reference
to the subsequent usage and movement
of raw materials, historical sales records,
current market conditions, aging analysis
and subsequent selling prices of the finished
goods, and challenging management for long
aged inventories without any provision;

2ERMBNEEERBARES BE
HELE BRIMmA BRESITEX @
HEEBIRNFEREBRSAEERR R
THEREGENRAFTERNEEBREZE®A

Testing the aging analysis of the inventories,
on a sample basis, to the source documents;
and
REGEEFFENRE DT EBR X HE&
TRE: &

Tracing a selection of finished goods with
subsequent selling prices to the source

documents to test the net realisable values.
PERTKRMBEEEZ RXMHEULAR

H ftt & ¥

‘mjp

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other E AR ZEZAH HMEB BT - A b

information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does notcover ZEH &G A A BEHRERME L I TR =
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance Ht &R @ EE R A HZ EH b E &

conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B8 37 A B e

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P05769

Hong Kong, 25 June 2019

“E— )\

B U A

38 7 A% Sl e

REZZEEBBENEERD FF
MEBLEREHAYGEEMBRRY
ERERERE AMBXNIBEERS
B-BFERBMBEIHRALFTE
B -BRFEEZRERIAHALCHRKRE I
FER - HNEBHEINBRT BR
AEEHEEERETBEBRETRE
KROBERREBELEN RN &
BEERENTNEERET BBZFER-

HABYRBARENERET AT
-

EEEHFEBHAERA
EENEBH

2042 R
¥ E R PO5769

EF%2019F6 A25H

iy 2 4 T (R %) 422 i A R 2 W) 117



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B 7 9 i B R Al 2 i WAL i R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 &{ 2201943431 HIFF/Z

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERT FET
Revenue N 6 183,977 188,550
Cost of sales 5 & K AR (56,593) (57,375)
Gross profit =S| 127,384 131,175
Other income =N 8 4,386 6,409
Other gains and losses H = & &5 1B 9 (11,665) (11,587)
Selling and distribution expenses HENMDHEBEX (27,198) (37,854)
Administrative expenses TEHAX (98,597) (87,082)
Finance costs B & K A 10 (1,823) .
(Loss)/Profit before tax B %R AT (E518), & A (7,513) 1,061
Income tax expense FTS T A X 11 (4,106) (8,282)
Loss for the year FREE 12 (11,619) (7,221)
Other comprehensive (expense)/ Ha2mE(BX) WA
income
Item that will not be reclassified BIrEE D EEEE
to profit or loss: mIE A -
Fair value loss on equity BAFEFTAEAM
instruments at fair value through 2 HE K AR R AR
other comprehensive income TERFEEE (435,066) -
Gain on revaluation of EMERAYMENRR
owner-occupied properties 3,519 =
Income tax relating to items that will HAeEHsEE
not be reclassified to profit or loss BHROEBEBEAEBADN
P 15 Bt (664) -
(432,211) -
Item that may be reclassified HEEMEEF 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: EmHE
Exchange differences on translating BMEIINE B 2 EH
foreign operations = (12,330) 15,417
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHEEREZ
investments nFE WK - 91,728
Reclassification adjustment on RAHEERERE
impairment of available-for-sale BeENBERAE
investments - 16,348
(12,330) 123,493
Other comprehensive (expense)/ FREMEZEGFEX)
income for the year 1N (444,541) 123,493
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FRE2EBIXR)
income for the year N R (456,160) 116,272
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
o 7 4 ik B LAt e i W 4 R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z220194#3/A31HIFF/E

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
=3 TERx FHET
Profit/(Loss) for the year LT&FEEERZRRN
attributable to: (B #8):
— Owners of the Company N/NEIE R =IN 4,668 530
— Non-controlling interests - JEE RS (16,287) (7,751)
(11,619) (7,221)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ UATEFELEFAEZE
income for the year (BAX) W A#E:
attributable to:
- Owners of the Company o N/NEIE R =IN (437,146) 120,216
- Non-controlling interests — JF 5 A% 4 25 (19,014) (3,944)
(456,160) 116,272
Earnings per share BRER 15
— Basic (HK cents) - EARGE) 0.43 0.05
- Diluted (HK cents) - #SE OB 0.43 0.05
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

G 3 SR 5 5IR Dl 2

AT 31 MARCH 2019 R20194#3H31H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FE T FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BMENLEXH 17 347,486 125,584
Prepaid lease payments B ERIE 18 44,789 53,728
Investment properties "EYHE 19 13,408 =
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEGFABRD
profit or loss TREE 21 5,377 =
Deposit and prepayments for AEREZZE KA
life insurance policies HRIF 22 - 5,113
Deposits for acquisition of property, WEME BMERIEZ
plant and equipment %% 6,029 6,441
Equity instruments at fair value through % A FE 5 A H ith 2 H
other comprehensive income WARRKRALA 23 138,327 =
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 24 - 573,392
Deferred tax assets BEERIEE E 31 87 -
555,503 764,258
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 25 6,586 9,590
Trade and other receivables ¥ 5 Kk HE 4 E Y IE 26 34,192 48,636
Financial assets at fair value through BAFBEFAEBREDN
profit or loss T EEE 21 5,160 8,986
Tax refundable R E K 141 14
Bank balances and cash RITEBERS 27 63,768 186,030
109,847 253,256
Total assets EE#E 665,350 1,017,514
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 &k H b FE A RIE 28 20,367 30,304
Contract liabilities EHEaE 29 2,222 =
Bank borrowings R 1T &K 30 134,799 =
Current tax liabilities BNEAFiIE & & 921 3,399
158,309 33,703
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BE) EEFE (48,462) 219,553
Total assets less current liabilities ZXEZLEBERBADAEE 507,041 983,811
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

% 1 S 5IR D 2

AT 31 MARCH 2019 1201943 H31H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
=3 FERT FET
Capital and reserves ERXK#E

Share capital B& 72X 32 109,380 109,351
Reserves % 1 370,636 828,421

Equity attributable to owners of KRABEE AEAS
the Company FE 2R 480,016 937,772
Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR = 27,025 46,039
Total equity EReE 507,041 983,811

The consolidated financial statements on pages 118 to 259 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25
June 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Pang Siu Hin
2R
Director

EF

F118H E F2590H FT#H 2 48 & B 15 /]
XKBEMN2019F6 A5 EE =2 #it &
MIREFE  THINTKERESE

Kwan Lai Man
HEX
Director

BEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{ 220193 H31H IFF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARFARL
Foreign
currency Share Non-
Share Share  Merger Revaluation translation  options  Retained controlling
capital  premium  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total

Bx ROBE AHBE EREE ELRRE BRESSE RIEY A% FERER a5t
HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKFO000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEnL  TEL  TER TEn T TEn TET TEn TET TER

(Note 32) (Note)
(M 332) (M)
At 1April 2017 R201754818 109,012 702,293 (71,469) 8,314 (8,528) 6,543 88414 834,585 35970 870,555
Profit{Loss) for the year Emiarl/(58) S = = - - - 530 50 (@) (1221
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ~ EEEM2ERA/ (B %)
for the year
Exchange differences on translating BENBIFERELES
foreign operations - - - - 11,610 - - 11,610 3,807 15,417
Fair value gain on available-for-sale MEHELE 7R TE
investments W& - - - 91728 - - - 978 - 91,728
Reclassffication adjustment on imparment 54 7 { i £ 4% & Jsl B 2
of avalable-for-sale investments ENHERE - - - 16,348 = S - 16348 - 16348
Total comprehensive income/(expense)  £E2EUA/ (B %)
for the year k] - = - 108,076 11,610 - 530 120,216 (3,944) 116,272
Dividends recognised as distribution EAAD KBRS - - - - - - (21823 (21,829) - (21829
Capital contribution from non-controllng ¥R RER 4
interests - - - - - - - - 14,013 14,013
Shares repurchased and cancelled BORFHERG (134) (1,656) - - - - - (1,790) - (1,790)
Issue of shares on exercise of share options R 1T & R E M & 17Kk & 473 6,090 - - - (2,658) - 3,905 - 3,905
Recognition of equity-setfled share-based ~ BE AR & Z LR B
payments ERRF X = - - - - 2,679 - 2,679 - 2,679
At 31 March 2018 R2018%F3A31 A 109,351 706,727 (71,463) 116,390 3,082 6,564 67,121 937,172 46,039 983,811
Adjustments (note 3) EEUER)) = - - (16,348) - - 15612 (736) - (736)
At 1 April 2018 (restated) R201854F1B (B ET) 109,351 706,727 (71,463 100,042 3,082 6,564 82,733 937,036 46,039 983,075
Profit/{Loss) for the year ERET/(BE) - - - - = - 4,668 4,668  (16287)  (11,619)
Other comprehensive income/(expense)  EEEM2ERA/ (B %)
for the year
Fair value loss on equity instruments BATEHAENZE
at fair value through other WANBRATLE
comprehensive income NTEER - - - (435,066) - - - (435,066) - (435,066)
Gain on revaluation of owner-occupied BffaRNENE
properties - - - 3,519 - - - 3,519 - 3,519
Income tax relating to ftems that wil not ~ EF @ EHHEEEH
be reclassified to profit or loss MABEBAMER - - - (664) - - - (664) - (664)
Exchange differences on BENEAERZER
tranglating foreign operations £8 - - - - (9,603) - - (9,603 (2721  (12,330)
Total comprehensive income/lexpense) B2 EMA/(B%)
forthe year B - - -2 (9,603 - 4868 (437146)  (19.014)  (456,160)
Dividends recognised as distribution ERADEHRE - - - - - - (21873)  (21,873) - (21873)
Issue of shares on exercise of share options R 17 5 I 1B M & 17k 29 368 - - - (158) - 239 - 239
Recognition of equity-settled share-based AR ZEEN KD A
payments EROHAR - - - - - 1,760 - 1,760 - 1,760
At 31 March 2019 H2019%35 31 109,380 707,095 (71,463 (332,169) (6,521) 8,166 65528 480,016 27,025 507,04
Note: The merger reserve represents the difference between the share capital Mt it - & O {# # 15 1B 15 & B &= 4H K 2 7 1) ik
of the Company and the aggregate amount of share capital of other KRS BET B 2 7] R A B9 48 5 28 (1
companies comprising the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation, HEBARARBEKRER) ZENEZR -

after elimination of intra-group investments.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A Bl e ER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT F#& T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EZEFMEEELRE
(Loss)/Profit before tax PR AT (B 18) @ F (7,513) 1,061
Adjustments for: gt T &EIEFAE:
Finance costs L= YN 1,823 -
Interest income B2 WA (1,579) (3,581)
Dividend income A% B g A (2,227) (2,013)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BMEMREZ
plant and equipment inﬁ B 293 68
Share-based payment expenses IR HDBERONRAX 1,760 2,679
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments & < 1 & X 18 2 # ﬁﬁ 1,061 1,112
Amortisation of intangible assets BREEHE - 1,548
Amortisation of premium and charges ASRBREEIEZ
on life insurance # 5 - 58
Depreciation of property, mME - BEERZKBZHE
plant and equipment 11,360 9,040
Loss on fair value change of BEATEFTAEZN S ®
financial asset at fair value through BEEZRAFEZHEIE
profit or loss 10,039 994
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary HHE—FENBARZEE 1 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect HESEURIEMER
of trade receivables BIEE 8 180 -
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEREZREEIR
investments = 16,348
Operating cash flows before movements & & & 74N & &) g 2 & &
in working capital Rene 15,198 27,314
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories TFERLD> (G 731]) 2,896 (507)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B REMEWZKERD
other receivables (1 ) 11,718 (12,926)
Increase in financial assets at BEATEFAEZN SR
fair value through profit or loss & EEN (6,420) (9,980)
Decrease in trade and other payables 25 & 51\ it & 1~ 7 I8 R 4 (7,980) (170)
Increase in contract liabilities SR EEEM 594 -
Cash generated from operations REXBFEE2 16,006 3,731
Income tax refunded R [ B %R 13 415
Income tax paid ERAE (7,335) (2,724)
Net cash generated from KRETHMFRESFHE
operating activities 8,684 1,422
B— )N\ —JUAE A A 4 (3 BE) 5 BR 2 F 123



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HaBaiak

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{ 220193 H31H IFF/Z

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Cash flows from investing activities REFZHFEEELRE
Interest received 2 F & 1,579 3,363
Dividend received BB B 2,227 2,013
Decrease in short-term deposits with FEEH BB =@ A &S H
original maturity over three months 5 5Ok 4 4,674 20,224
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE HEARKBHE
plant and equipment KIB 4 3
Purchases of property, plant and BEDE BERRXE
equipment (231,748) (12,956)
Deposit for acquisition of property, WEME BEAIKEBEZERS
plant and equipment (5,603) (5,735)
Purchases of available-for-sale BEUHIEERE
investments = (73,112)
Purchases of leasehold land EEHE L (2,865) (21,300)
Net cash used in investing activities KETHMARF5 (231,732) (87,503)
Cash flows from financing activities BEZEHFFEHLRE
Dividends paid B E (21,873) (21,823)
Interest paid 2 A A (1,823) =
Capital contribution from FEERERTE
non-controlling interests = 14,013
Repurchase of shares 8 B AR 1D = (1,790)
New bank loans raised MESRITER 260,000 =
Repayment of bank loans EEBRITER (125,201) o
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMDATERE 239 3,905
Net cash generated from/(used in) mMEEHE/(FTA)R:
financing activities F R 111,342 (5,695)
Net decrease in cash and ReRBESEEYRDFHE
cash equivalents (111,706) (91,776)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUIMREeMRESEEYD
the beginning of year 181,094 266,542
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes [& & & &) 5 & (5,620) 6,328
Cash and cash equivalents at FHRNESRESEEY
the end of year 63,768 181,094
Representing: (a3
Bank balances and cash RTEBH KRS 63,768 186,030
Short-term deposits with maturity =@ A LA EEIE M2 H T K
over three months - (4,936)
63,768 181,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%ok SV 5 e o5 B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman Island and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its parent
and ultimate parent is Genwealth Group Holding Company
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section to the annual report.

The Group is principally engaged in developing, marketing,
selling and distributing of personal care products, healthcare
products and household products as well as provision of
Chinese medical healthcare related services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Group incurred a net loss of approximately HK$11,619,000
during the year ended 31 March 2019 and, as of that date,
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$48,462,000. The net current liabilities
consist of bank loans of approximately HK$134,799,000 that
contain a repayment on demand clause. At 31 March 2019,
the aggregate carrying amount of bank loans repayable after
one year amounted to approximately HK$68,744,000 based
on the schedule of repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. In addition, taking into account the cash flows
from operations and unutilised banking facilities, the directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to meet its
liabilities and commitments as and when they fall due and to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%o 1 SV 5 e 2% PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{ 220193 H31H IFF/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for
the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out
in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A o S 5 it A

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERAHIRKEIIEE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BB EERN(E BB
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHwREFER]
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

&)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are P N S o | $ M FET
mandatorily effective for the current year ERVBHREEARHEE
(Continued) 5 AN (#)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits (or other components of
equity, as appropriate) and comparative information has
not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 April 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS
18 Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

o Sales of goods
° Provision of healthcare service
Information about the Group’s performance obligations

and the accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes 6 and 4 respectively.

31 ZEBHMBEHREERFISHEEF

F &/ Wz

AEBERAFEERER
FEAEMBHRE LR FI5H -
&8 W RS % R 155% B
KB G ERNF18H K as
ERERHEAUNFNRELS
HMEBERE-

AEBERPERETSNB
& EBFEA1558 0 M 4 2 &
BZERZRAEZERI L
fE R HE2018F 4 B1HMER -
MXERBEHz2EMEZER
FMRBEN (K ER 2 EAd
HH(RTFTEBBRME) #E
R LEBRERTEET - I
Sh BRIEBEE B KRS EA
FIBR 2 BEBR XEH
RIBEHN2018F4 818 H
REKZAKBYPIERZE
Ale Bt F T L& E B A B
EAEALXE HITHARERE
B TRIEE ST £RFE18
SRk R BB ERFE 11
REEZAVREBEZRERR -

AEEBRANUNTEPANE
EEEE RS RR

e HEEM

e RHFBRY
ERERET LMK MmEER
FEBHRIBNAEEENE

EREHEEDEND IR
36 R 4 B -
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3.

128

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ H KFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

ERAFHITIREETESR
BB EERN(E BB
BHmEER D@

AN F 9 & A A F R
EBUKRELENR EHE
HIENE D)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 31 BEBHBHREERNEISHEE
(Continued) B W (E)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of IED Vit Yl
HKFRS 15 FEI6HELEZZER M
The following adjustments were made to the amounts RNEBEE ¥ R2018F4H1H
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial ZIEEMBERARAER
position at 1 April 2018. Line items that were not affected TRHRIEHATAZE - TBIE
by the changes have not been included. RAREXZEEHTE 2IEB -
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at HKFRS 15 at
31 March 1 April
2018 Reclassification 2018*
R 2018
742018 & 4R1BRE
3A31H ERMBHRE
RRZH B 5155
ZEREE ENSE ZEEE"
Note HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Pt & THT TR TR
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables BH5REMENTE () 30,304 (1,628) 28,676
Contract liabilities RN (@) = 1,628 1,628

*

The amounts in this column are before the adjustments from
the application of HKFRS 9.

Note:

(@)  Asat 1 April 2018, advances from customers of approximately
HK$1,628,000 in respect of sales contracts previously
included in trade and other payables were reclassified to
contract liabilities.

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD.

* AWEBEARSAARBELY
BHMEERFORAE -

(a) H2018%F 4818 % Al &t A
B kHEMEMNKEZHEHE
EEHNBHANERRBRY
1,628,000 TEEF DB E
AHAaE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & Z20194¥3H31H 1 FZ

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. ERAMRKIEITEE
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG MBEBEEN(ERY
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS BHEEA]D @
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are A 58 &l A B F T

mandatorily effective for the current year EEMBEBREEAR AR

(Continued) 7] AN (%)

3.1 HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 31 BEBHMBHREERFISHEEF
(Continued) F&a# e (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial application of Y25 fE FH & B B 7% 3 & 2B R
HKFRS 15 (Continued) FE1ORELECFZER M (E)
The following tables summarise the impacts of applying TREARZEXTEZE
HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated statement of BEERAAEAMBEWMEENSE
financial position as at 31 March 2019 for each of the 155% ¥ KN & B R 201943 A
line items affected. Line items that were not affected by BIBZHEAMBIRRER 2
the changes have not been included. Z- TR AXZEEHX

27EE -

Amounts
without
As application
reported Adjustments of HKFRS 15
RIER
ERUMBERE
% Bl E155%
EHREHE T ZEH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FET FET
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5Kk E M ER
A 20,367 2,222 22,589
Contract liabilities AEHBaE 2,222 (2,222) -
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

130

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected
credit losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and (3) general
hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with
the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied
the classification and measurement requirements
(including impairment under ECL model) retrospectively
to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1
April 2018 (date of initial application) and has not applied
the requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 April 2018. The difference between
carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 April 2018 are recognised in the opening
retained profits and other components of equity, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS
9 are disclosed in note 4.

ERAFHITIREETESR
BB EERN(E BB
BHmEED] =

2 58 Bl A R FET
ERYBBRELEIREE
HINE )

32 BBUMBHEERFINR £ M

T A

RAFE AEEEERE
BB REENES T2 T
AREMEBYE RS EEL
ZHBHEEBETAN - FAEY
BREENEIORMNEHME
ERcBRABBEZDBNRTE
RQEMEEZCRMEERE
TEHMEEBRDRQ—K
HHRERIASIAFRE -

AREBECRBEEETBRSE
HERNEORATE 2 BIEAFCIE
BEBMBEREERFINR
B % 7 2018F4 A1H (¥ 2
ERRB)MARIEERZT
BEREPEAEASDERFTERT
(BIEEHEEEEBETZRH
B) KkI&\EN2018F 4 A1
HEXRIERZ T AERZ
£ FE - N2018FE3A31H 2
BE M E B R 20184818 2
FHBEZAZEZ8RFIR
BB s M N B 4 & A2 X EF
PR Y EEN L&

it & THRER KRG B
FEE RERLBEHRTD
REBBSERFEREE
TR BRRAERH -

EREEMBHREERFINR
SIEE B FT BRI MY TEAK BR -
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. EAME KZ g1 %T‘E\ B
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BBHREEAAN(EER
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS HwEER]D @
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are PR 5 58 A £ 39 3R]

mandatorily effective for the current year ERMBEREENREE

(Continued) HENED,

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 3.2 ?g(ﬁz‘ g;? HEERIFEIN 2/
Summary of effects arising from initial application of f{Z 5 & & B /@L 7% & 2E R
HKFRS 9 FOREL T ER A
The table below illustrates the classification and TrHilsHEERSME
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities BORLRAEUNLRREXRE
and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and B (2018 F 4418 ) &%
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 April 2018. VHRERAEORRED G

ST EREIR TXEARFEE
BEMBENEMIAR -

Amortised  Financial

cost assets

(previously  at FVTPL

Available- Equity classified as required by
for-sale instruments loansand  HKAS 39/ Revaluation  Deferred  Retained
investments  at FVTOCI receivables) ~ HKFRS 9 reserve  tax assets profits

B
e ES
£30%/
EEOE
) REER
BATE  BEAK $0BAT
HARM (RH2E ROTER
THEE 2ERAN  BERR  ABEN EE
RE RAIE EWHE) <LREE E4BE HEEE RYEHN
Notes  HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000

0
f & Tér  TEn Tén  TExr  TEn  TEr TEx

Closing balance at R2018F3A31A

31 March 2018 ZBRER-
- HKAS 39 EReTEN
£39% 573,392 - 218,534 8,986 116,390 - 67,121
Effect arising from initial & { B & BH %
application of HKFRS 9: &£ %/ £9%
ELR8:
Reclassification ENAE
From available-for-sale ~ REAHHERE
investments )] (673,392) 573,392 - - (16,348) - 16,348
From loans and receivables 7% & 5 % ) JE It
£ b) - - (5,170) 5170 - = =
Remeasurement EffitE
Impaiment under BRGEBRR
ECL model T2 () - - (676) - - 140 (736)
Opening balance at R2018F451A 2
1 April 2018 Bags - 573,392 212,488 14,156 100,042 140 82,733
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

132

Available-for-sale investments

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income for the fair value changes of all its equity investments
previously classified as available-for-sale investments. These
investments are not held for trading and not expected
to be sold in the foreseeable future. At the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9, approximately HK$573,392,000
were reclassified from available-for-sale investments to
equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVTOCI”). The fair value gains of approximately
HK$116,390,000 relating to those investments previously
carried at fair value continued to accumulate in revaluation
reserve. In addition, impairment losses previously recognised
of approximately HK$16,348,000 were transferred from
retained profits to revaluation reserve as at 1 April 2018.

Loans and receivables

Deposit and prepayments for life insurance policies previously
classified as loans and receivables was reclassified to
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
upon the application of HKFRS 9 because its cash flows that
do not represent solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. As at 1 April 2018, the fair
value of this financial asset is approximately HK$5,170,000.

ERAFHITIREETESR
BB EERN(E BB
BHmEER D@

AN 5 5 ) AR RORY #TRT
ERUBHRELENRERZ
& A (#)

32 BHBHUBBEEAEIRH
T E(E)

P46 /& & 8 BT T #R& E A
FORELZZEB UL (E)

b 5
(a) WHEERR

AEEREBELEAISEA
AEEEREZAHBERAR
FEZHHREME2E W AP
2 -ZERBEIIFERFIEE
E - BEEHAAERRKRAD
eHE - RVMBERS A
BmEEBFIOREHR " L
578,392,000/%8 JT A A f# H &
REEFTHPEERAFER
AEM2ERATRA FE
FAHEMEEBAD ZBA
TE-LERBEAFEZID
ZEREEBEHNAFEKZ
#9116,390,0007% ST ##£ E XN &=
HEREEBRT LI LR ER
B B B 5 1B #916,348,00078
TLR2018FE4 A1 B HRE %
Tl AEHERE -

(b) EXRKEWRNKE

AR DBEAEBERKREWRZKEA
MABREZRESRBMAR
BREREBSY B HREEL
FORBETHIBEAEARATF
B ABZ(EAFEENA
Bl )zemEE BAH
HeEmWIEMABRAERE KK
BEASF B K K2018
FAA1B - ZEBMEENA
SE{E#) A5,170,00058 7T °
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. To measure the ECL, trade receivables have
been grouped based on past due analysis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost including
bank balances, other deposits and receivables are assessed
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there had been no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 April 2018, the additional credit loss allowance (net
of deferred tax) of approximately HK$736,000 has been
recognised against retained profits. The additional loss
allowance of approximately HK$876,000 was charged against
trade receivables. The related tax effect of approximately
HK$140,000 was recognised in deferred tax assets.

ERAFITIREEITIE R
BB EER(E BB
BHmEER D@

A 5 5 ) AR Y #TRT
ERUBHRELENRERZ
& A (#)

32 EBHBKELEBEINEH
T A(#&)

P46 /& & 8 BT T R & E A
FORELZZEB UL (E)

B & (4F)
(c) EHMEFEEBBEEXNT ZHE

AEBEREEY B REE
Bl EoOR L Et BERBE
EER RAERESEKRK
FERFERAREERE-
RAEBEBMEREEE BS
UK BEEREE SRS TE
T

REBHEKAGFEZHEMLER
BEMMEBERTES  Hibix
T REWRB)Z BIEREED
Z12@AESHEERBE(12
BABEHEEBE]EEF
i MEERKRAVNBEER
LA 2R 3 4 BB 2 1 40 o

MR2018F 4810 BHE &
BEEBEGHRBRELCHEE)D
736,000 T E R ER B &
H o K8 SN &5 1B & 5 £9876,000
BILET AE 5 EWRKIE- H
B 75 & £ 49140,00078 T R
BEEHRBEERR -
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

3.2 HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial application of
HKFRS 9 (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(¢) Impairment under ECL model (Continued)
All loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March

2018 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as at 1 April
2018 is as follows:

ERAFITIREETIESR
BB EERN(E BB
BHmEER D@

AN 5 5 ) AR RORY #TRT
ERVBBEENREE
& A (#)

32 EBHBRKELEBEINEH
T A(#&)

P46 /& & 8 BT T #R& E A
BIORELZHER M (E)
M ()

(c) BAHEEEBEREXTZHE
(&)

M2018%F3A31H B 5 E I
HEZRABREREEHAR
20184 A1 8 F 1) &5 18 B &

ZEEBRMT
Trade receivables
EZRWME
HK$’'000
FHET
At 31 March 2018 — HKAS 39 M20184F 3 A31H

- BB G EA L3995 -

Amounts remeasured through REVRBENEFFEZ2LHE
opening retained profits 876
At 1 April 2018 M20185 4 H1H 876
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AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ H KFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of all

new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement of
financial position had to be restated. The following table
show the adjustments recognised for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the

changes have not been included.

EAFHITIREETESR
BB EER(E BB
BHmEER D@

A 5 5 ) AR Y #TRT
ERUBHRELENRERZ
& A (#)

3.3 [EF B # AT & R 7 4 4
EHBMRIEFNZE

O A S b B
B A HNEAMBER
RE - TRIITHERPE
HERRMAE KZ®
FEMHEBLMEA -

31 March 1 April
2018 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
MH2018F FEBUE FEBHMKE H2018%F
3A31H ®WEERA HmEFEL 481H
(R #F %) £ 155 FokE (KREF)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T F& T FH& T FH&ET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Financial assets at fair value % 2 ¥ {& 5+ A
through profit or loss Bmm et
ax - - 5,170 5,170
Deposit and prepayments A SR B 2% &
for life insurance policies NEERNE P SRINIS = (5,113) -
Equity instruments at ZAFERTA
fair value through other Hai 2w KA
comprehensive income AR AN T A - - 573,392 573,392
Available-for-sale AHEERE
investments 573,392 - (573,392) -
Deferred tax assets BEELEHEEE - _ 140 140
B )R U AT A (R ) B M A PR 2 W] 135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%o 1 SV 5 e 2% PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 & Z201943431H I F/&

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“ H KFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

(Continued)

3.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application of all

new standards (Continued)

ERAHFITIREEITIE R
BB EERN(E BB
BHmEER D@

AN 5 5 ) AR RORY #TRT
ERUBHRELENRERZ
& A (#)

3.3 [EF B # AT E R R 4 4
B BMIEFNZE(E)

31 March 1 April
2018 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
R2018F FEHME BEBK R2018%F
3AB31H ®HEEA HWEER 4H18
(R &%) F£155%% FoH (KRE)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT F& T F& T FHET
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables & 5 & H b JE Ut
o IE 48,636 - (933) 47,703
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H i '
o IE 30,304 (1,628) - 28,676
Contract liabilities ENAaE = 1,628 = 1,628
Capital and reserves EXKfEE
Reserves % s 828,421 - (736) 827,685

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31 March
2019, movements in working capital have been computed
based on opening consolidated statement of financial
position as at 1 April 2018 as disclosed above.

M&E: 3L 558 £201943 A
SIBLEFEKEEHELEDN
ERBeREME B L
X EZHR2018F4/81H 2
FYRAMBRALRAESE
BESEE-
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Leases'
Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments!

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 1

and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRSs

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement’

Long-term Interests in
Associates and
Joint Ventures!

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle!

EAFHITIREETESR
BB EER(E BB
BHmEER D@

E MM B = R E M ZHET
REBITEBMBRE

% g

AEBRARREANERAATERM
BREARER 2 REEFTER
B % s R

BEMBRS
#E R FE 1657
BEMBRE
R FEAT 5

HE!

R A 42

BB (B R PIT 15 B B2 32 HY
TREBZRe) THEM
@B E235

BEMBRE EBOER"
ERIFE3HE 2
& & &

BEMBRSE ERAMEN
ERIFEIH 2 12 A& K
& 5] & SR

BEMBRSE BREEEH
R E 105 & R /NE]
BB G ER AN S
FBRZETR HHEE

& =X
EAS
BB G £ ERMEZS

F1HREE
2+ £ B F85

ZABFT A
BB ER B CEIR
F19W 2 BETA BB
wE
BB ER REEE QA &
Fo8H BRI AR HAELEZ
RHEER
BEEUMBHRE BEAUB®RE
AR Z BT AN #E B 2015 4F
220174
BEHzFE
o
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138

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue
but not yet effective (Continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

ERAFHITIREETESR
BB EERN(E BB
BmEER] =

C 78 i 1B [8 R & 3z # 5]
REBITEBMBRE

2 Bl (&)

1 R2019F1A1HR 2B AB 2 F
FEHIRI Ak o

2 R2021F1A1HK 2B AB 2 F
EHIR Ak o

3 RNBEBEETZAHRIZzEAKRZF
EHIR A -

4 U B H 520201 B1H & 2
BRBcEEFEHARBESRZ
BIZEBEAHREERBLER-

5 M2020F1A1H Sk 2. BB 2 F
FEHAR A K o

BRTIXHAFHITIMEEITRTEY
BHREELIN RRAREFEH
ERMBHEMHTREEFTER
MHEREENRARLKRIEY
RAVBERREREATE -

EBMBRELEDFE165
HE

BREMBHRELERFE16%H S H 5
HEARABANEELZHELSE
ARESA-—EAZEEX-EF
B % o R B 165 £ K
HBRREBGERNFITRBEE
MEBE®RE-

BB HREERFI16RERIEA
M EEROHERPERKED
HERRBAEL I FETH
BEEAFIGRAETEREER
STREBFEVHHRE LD F15
HEREZRNREERTRER
HEABRNREMEE - T B Y
BRELENESRTEEERD
HEHEEERWBE -
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the
lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments, as
well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others. For
the classification of cash flows, the Group currently presents
upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows in
relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those classified
as investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will be
presented as financing cash flows by the Group.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of approximately HK$42,682,000 as
disclosed in note 36. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.
Therefore, the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to the date
of initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
HKFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 Leases,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that at initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial

statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:

° has the power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract
are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b)
the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group will
be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included in
the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly probable
that such an inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its assessment
of whether an estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to represent faithfully the circumstances present at the end of
the reporting period and the changes in circumstances during
the reporting period.

Refund liabilities
The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group expects

to refund some or all of the consideration received from
customers.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Sale with a right of return/exchange

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange for
dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the following:

(@) revenue for the transferred products in the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
(therefore, revenue would not be recognised for the
products expected to be returned/exchanged);

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and

(c) anasset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of sales)
for its right to recover products from customers.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the
time value of money if the timing of payments agreed (either
explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer. In those circumstances, the contract
contains a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to the
contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer
of the associated goods or services is less than one year,
the Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the transaction price for any significant financing component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(upon application of HKFRS 15 in
accordance with transitions in note 3)
(Continued)

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that
the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs as an asset if it expects to
recover these costs. The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the assets relate.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing all
incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs would
otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or loss within
one year.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

Goods, services, interests and dividends

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payment have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as
a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset
are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
at initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold
land and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation
of which the retained interest becomes a financial asset), all
of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that
does not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences
are re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Share-based payment
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).
At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve. For share options that
vest immediately at the date of grant, the fair value of the share
options granted is expensed immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment (Continued)
Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods or services
qualify for recognition as assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax because
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described below)
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed as evidenced
by end of owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item (including the
relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date of transfer is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in revaluation reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
the asset, the relevant revaluation reserve will be transferred
directly to retained profits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than properties under construction less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for production
or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payments provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they
are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible, intangible assets with finite
useful lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amounts of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value
of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 April 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

O it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 BX#)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with

transitions in note 3) (Continued)

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost and debt instruments/receivables
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
of the financial asset from the next reporting period. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no

longer credit impaired.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE ST B X #

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 3) (Continued)
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Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
revaluation reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Dividends are included in the “other income”
line item in profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 B X #)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

° significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the
credit spread, the credit default swap prices for
the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 BX#)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

0]

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 B X #)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

@i

@i

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) abreach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 BX#)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

@i

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects
an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial instruments are
grouped on the following basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%ok SV 5 e o5 B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 BX#)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 3) (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Except for investments in debt instruments/receivables
that are measured at FVTOCI, the Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL, held-to-maturity
investments, available-for-sale financial assets and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. T EEF BE®

(Continued)

174

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

0]

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated
as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE g5 BX#)

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial

assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

0]

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued) (i)

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets and is included in the ‘other gains and
losses’ line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018)
(Continued)

@i

Giii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-
maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period except for unquoted equity investments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale debt instruments
relating to interest income calculated using the effective
interest method are recognised in profit or loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Other changes in
the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial assets
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of revaluation reserve.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

FESTHRERE

%H@\I/\\ E/

EHEE(E)

&

BMEENSBRAKTE(R

2018F4H1HEFRAEEHFERE
ERIZEIHE AT) (&)

(i

(i)

AhEEREE

AHEESREEDNEER
T%ﬁﬁiliﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁ

KR EWKIE - b)FE EF
HEREH ()RR FEFAE
SHERMEEZHFITETR-

AEERBELIEAAUHELE
TREENBRARERE S
BRERSHEERNRF
B E HEAFEEEASRE
FFEZERERARERI
HEREBEMNEEHEZNER
BWAEBzAHEEREE T

B R 2 B K 8 2R
e T4 R TR

F$$.WHM#hgm

%ﬂﬁﬁ4h%% & R
AL EeREERTEL
ﬁ@m@\A@EEW fig
RARFEEFHRERE -

B KWK IR

ER Kk EWKIEAREE KA
BENRZHENTESREE -
mEEIERTSIERE-
ROEHERRE  BERRER
RATDERERMNXERE
AR AR B EE -

BRABHERETERNNEH
U KB FEWABB
ERERAETIARER -

HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2018/2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%ok SV 5 e o5 B

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate
with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of HKFRS
9 on 1 April 2018) (Continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of revaluation
reserve. In respect of available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which
the Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at
FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the revaluation reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
profits.

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the

contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the partyis a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4.

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions
are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Allowances for inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories listing on a
product-by-product basis at the end of each reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving inventory
items. Management estimates the net realisable value for such
items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration forward-
looking information that is reasonable and supportable
available without undue costs or effort. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are reassessed and
changes in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s trade receivables
are disclosed in note 26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

6. REVENUE 6. WA

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue: ATAREER Z WA :
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$’000
TERx FH& T
Sales of goods HEE M 183,044 187,989
Provision of healthcare services 1 R R 15 933 561
183,977 188,550

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers

For the year ended 31 March 2019

) EFEHRADHF

BZE2019%3A31BLLFE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total
ER B g
BRI REEANH EEIB REDIH i
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Segments pi| TR TER TiER TER TR
Type of goods or service ERAREER
Sales of healthcare products REERHE 175,349 - - 566 175,915
Sales of personal care products fAAZERBEREE 244 4,006 372 - 4,622
Sales of household products FEEMIE 1,576 931 - - 2,507
Healthcare service R R % - - - 933 933
Total ST 177,169 4,937 372 1,499 183,977
Geographical markets ik 23]
Hong Kong & 138,705 4,937 372 692 144,706
The People’s Republic of China ~ F# A R £
(the “PRC") () 38,464 - - 807 39,271
Total EEr 177,169 4,937 372 1,499 183,977
Timing of revenue recognition W A 15 &
A point in time EEHEY 177,169 4,937 372 1,499 183,977
S )RR R AT A (B ) B B A PR 2 185
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6. REVENUE (Continued)

186

(ii) Performance obligations for contracts

with customers

Sales of healthcare products, personal care
products and household products

The Group sells healthcare products, personal care
products and household products to retailers and
distributors and directly to customers through online
sales.

For sales of goods to retailers and distributors, revenue
is recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being when the goods have been shipped to their specific
location (delivery). Following delivery, the retailers and
the distributors have full discretion over the manner of
distribution and price to sell the goods, have the primary
responsibility when on selling the goods and bears the
risks of obsolescence and loss in relation to the goods.
The normal credit term is O to 75 days upon delivery.

For online sales, revenue is recognised when control
of the goods has transferred to the customer, being
at the point the goods are delivered to the customer.
Delivery occurs when the goods have been shipped to
the customer’s specific location. When the customer
initially purchases the goods online, the transaction price
received by the Group is recognised as a contract liability
until the goods have been delivered to the customer.

Healthcare service

The Group provides mother-infant Chinese medical
healthcare service. Generally, the Group charges one-off
healthcare service fee based on an agreed pricing for a
specific healthcare service. Revenue from providing this
healthcare service is recognised at a point in time when
the services are rendered.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{Z2019%3H31HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or services delivered or provided.
Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under “HKFRS 8 Operating Segments” are as follows:

1. Product Development Segment — sales of products
developed by the Group under own brands

2. Brand Development and Management Segment — sales
and distribution of products with exclusive distribution
rights

3. Trading of Goods Segment — sales and distribution
of products purchased from authorised dealers,
independent traders, manufacturers or parallel importers

4. Healthcare Segment — development of mother and child
related health products, hospital, medical center and
related services
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%o 1 SV 5 e 2% PR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{ 220193 H31H IFF/Z

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 7. D EBE R =)
Segment revenue and results DTEBARES
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results THRTRAHmMERKLED HE D
by reportable and operating segment. HASBEWAREEN DN -
For the year ended 31 March 2019 B Z2019F3A31ALEFEE
Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development  Management  of Goods Healthcare
Segment Segment  Segment  Segment Total

Em A & Em
REL® REESF ERELH REIW il

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TR TR TR TR
Revenue WA
External sales HHNVEE 177,169 4,937 372 1,499 183,977
Segment profit/(loss) AR/ (BB 35,713 1,330 105 (26,657) 10,491
Interest income FEWKA 1,579
Dividend income RE WA 2,227
Loss on fair value change of RATEFABRN
financial assets at FVTPL ¢BEEZLTE
EH I ER (10,039)
Finance costs BERA (1,823)
Unallocated expenses RARRX (9,948)
Loss before tax BB AIE B (7,513)

188 HIN SANG GROUP (INTERNATIONAL) HOLDING CO. LTD. Annual Report 2018/2019
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

7. 7EEE#)
TEUWMAREEE)

HE2018F3A31BILEE

Brand
Development
Product and Trading
Development ~ Management  of Goods  Healthcare
Segment Segment Segment Segment Total
Em o 2 B 5 Em
REDH REENH EENH RBEHH At
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TER
Revenue WA
External sales HINHE 180,574 6,341 700 935 188,550
Segment profit/(loss) AHEN/(EB) 36,784 573 (1) (15,775) 21511
Interest income RN 3,581
Dividend income Y ON 2,013
Loss on fair value change of BOTEFABRZ SR
financial assets at FVTPL BEZATEED BR (994)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AT HERE 2 HEEA
investments (16,348)
Unallocated expenses RARRAY (8,702)
Profit before tax B 1 A A 1,061

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of corporate expenses, loss on
fair value change of financial assets at FVTPL, impairment loss
on available-for-sale investments, dividend income, interest
income and finance costs. This is the measure reported to
the board of directors for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019 #{ 220193 H31H IFF/Z

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 7. D EBE R =)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group